
AGENDA
SEWARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, May 19, 2015 @ 7:00 PM 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting of the City Council of the City of Seward, Nebraska will 
be held at 7:00 PM  on Tuesday, May 19, 2015, in the Municipal Building Council Chambers, 142 North 
7th Street, Seward, Nebraska, which meeting will be open to the public.  The Mayor and City Council 
reserve the right to adjourn into Closed Session as per Section 84-1410 of the Nebraska Revised Statutes. 
An Agenda for such meeting, kept continually current, is available at the Office of the City Clerk, 537 
Main Street, Seward, Nebraska, during normal business hours. Individuals requiring physical or sensory 
accommodations, who desire to attend or participate, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 
402.643.2928 no later than 3:30p.m.on the Friday preceding the Council Meeting.  

City financial claims and related invoices will be available for Councilmember review, audit and 
voluntary signatures at Council Chambers beginning 30 minutes prior to the scheduled meeting time. 

AGENDA ITEMS

CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Eickmeier

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE-MOMENT OF SILENCE - Mayor Eickmeier

DISCLOSURE OF OPEN MEETINGS ACT & OTHER NOTIFICATIONS - Mayor Eickmeier
This is an Open Meeting of the Seward Nebraska Governing Body. The City of Seward abides by the 
Nebraska Open Meetings Act in conducting business.  A copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act is 
displayed on the north wall of this meeting room facility as required. Disclosure of meeting recording 
processes is posted in the Meeting Room.  A participant sign-in sheet is available for use by any Citizen 
addressing the Council. Presenters shall approach the podium, state their name & address for the Clerk’s 
record and are asked to limit remarks to five minutes.  All remarks shall be directed to the Mayor who 
shall determine by whom any appropriate response shall be made.  The City of Seward reserves the right 
to adjust the order of items on this Agenda if necessary and may elect to take action on any of the items 
listed.

ROLL CALL - Mayor Eickmeier

1. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES OF MAY 5, 2015 - Bonnie 
Otte

2. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. Claims & Payables Reports
B. City Clerk-Treasurer Report
C. City Codes Director Report
D. Police Department Report
E. Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City

3. PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - CONSIDERATION OF TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING (TIF) PROJECT - BOTTLE ROCKET BREWING, LLC - TIF Attorney, 
Andrew Willis

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 1 / 131



A. Presentation and Review of TIF Application
B. Presentation and Review of Cost-Benefit Analysis
C. Presentation and Review of Amendment to Redevelopment Plan
D. Presentation and Review of Redevelopment Agreement
E. Consideration of Resolution approving the Redevelopment Plan Amendment
F. Consideration of a Resolution Approving the Redevelopment Agreement and the 

Issuance of TIF Indebtedness for the Redevelopment Project

4. PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - AMEND AND UPDATE ZONING MAP TO INCLUDE 
AIRPORT OVERLAY- John Hughes

A. Consideration of an Ordinance to Amend and Update the Current Zoning Map.

5. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSAL REGARDING PLANTING OF TREES IN CITY 
RIGHT OF WAY - Tree Board Chairman, Matt Stryson

6. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION LIMITING PARKING 60 FEET FROM 
INTERSECTION ON STREETS INTERSECTING WITH HILLCREST DR TO 
INCLUDE KOLTERMAN ST, FAIRLANE AVE, PLAINVIEW AVE, SUNRISE DR, 
AND EASTRIDGE DR - John Hughes

7. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING CLOSING HIGHWAY 15 AND 
THE NORTH LANE OF HWY 34 FOR THE FOURTH OF JULY FESTIVITIES- John 
Hughes

A. Consideration of Approval of a Parade Permit for July 4, Closing Highway 15 at the 
Intersection of Seward Street and Highway 15 and Closure of the North Lane of 
Highway 34 Between 4th and 6th Streets

8. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE -  John Hughes

9. FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR ADMINISTRATIVE 
ACTION - Mayor Eickmeier

10. ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS - Mayor Eickmeier
A. July 4th Celebration

11. MOTION TO ADJOURN

I, Bonnie Otte, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget 
& Human Resource Director of the City of Seward, Nebraska, hereby certify:

That the foregoing Notice of Meeting and Agenda for such meeting has been posted in the 
following places: Seward City Hall, Seward County Courthouse, Seward Memorial Library and 
CityofSewardNE.com  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand officially and affixed the seal of the City 
this 14th day of May, 2015.

_________________________________
Bonnie Otte
Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget & Human Resource Director

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 2 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 3 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G1

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES OF 
MAY 5, 2015 - Bonnie Otte

Administrative Report: A motion to approve the minutes as written or with modifications would be 
in order.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 4 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

1 

 

The Seward City Council met at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 5, 2015, with Council 

President Chris Schmit presiding and Assistant Administrator /Clerk-Treasurer 

/Budget & Human Resources Director Bonnie Otte recording the proceedings.  Upon 

roll call, the following Councilmembers were present: Charles Lieske, Ellen Beck, 

Sid Kamprath, Dean Fritz, Barbara Pike, John Singleton, Dick Hans. Other officials 

present: City Attorney Kelly Hoffschneider and Interim City Administrator Jack 

Vavra. Absent: Mayor Joshua Eickmeier.  

 

Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by the method of 

communicating advance notice of the regular and special meetings of the City Council 

of the City of Seward, Nebraska, as stated in Ordinance No. 16-11, which was adopted 

on the 16th day of August, 2011; said method stating that the notice of such meeting, 

with the agenda thereon, be posted in the following places:  City Hall, Seward 

County Courthouse, Municipal Building, and Seward Public Library.  The certificate 

of posting notice is attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was 

simultaneously given to the Mayor and all members of the City Council and a copy 

of their acknowledgment of receipt of notice and the agenda are attached to these 

minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated in the advance notice and 

in the notice to the Mayor and Council of this meeting.  All proceedings hereafter 

shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the 

public. 

 

THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Council President Schmit announced that a copy of the Agenda for this meeting 

is posted in the front window of the Municipal Building and copies are available 

on the north wall where a copy of the Open Meetings Act is also posted for public 

inspection.  He also noted that any citizen wishing to address the Council should 

come to the podium, state their name and address and limit their comments to five 

minutes.  All remarks should be directed to the Mayor/Chairperson, who will then 

determine who will make any appropriate response.  The City of Seward reserves 

the right to adjust the order of items on this agenda if necessary and may elect 

to take action on any of the items listed.  

  

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 

      Councilmember Fritz moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the minutes 

of the April 21, 2015 City Council meeting be approved. 

 

 Aye:  Hans, Lieske, Kamprath, Beck, Schmit, Pike, Singleton, Fritz 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA CONSIDERATION ITEMS 

 

 Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

following Consent Agenda items be approved in one single motion:  

 

A. Claims & Payables Reports 
B. Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City. 

 

CLAIMS LIST 

5-5-15 

COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Abbreviations: Bu, Building Upkeep; Eq, Equipment; Ex, Expense; Ma, 

Maintenance; Mi, Mileage; Misc, Miscellaneous; Re, Repairs; Sa, Salaries, Se, 

Services; Su, Supplies; Ut, Utilities, CI, Capital Improvements. 

    

Payroll 

 

126,662.37 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 5 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

2 

 

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway, Permit 

 

3,960.00 

Alliance Technologies, Se 

 

9,186.70 

American Fence Co, Su   23.60 

Nickalas Bloebaum, Refnd   30.00 

American Water Works, Ex   74.00 

Carroll Dist, Su 

 

566.28 

Calibre Press, Trng 

 

249.00 

Bolte Oil & Supply, Su 

 

1,138.37 

Time Warner Cable, Se 

 

79.38 

Chase Card, Su   2,013.99 

  Amazon, Su 39.39   

  Wal-Mart, Su 485.59   

  Linas Restaurant, Meals 28.68   

  Red Lobster, Meals 49.76   

  Cheddars, Meals 25.00 

   Sq Retail Nebraska, Su 142.47 

   Ptouchdirect, Su 47.64 

   Paypal, Re 520.00 

   UNL Agron & Hort, Trng 60.00 

   Nebraska Arborists Assn, Ex 65.00 

   Kearney Parks & Rec, Trng 160.00 

   GoDaddy, Se 216.31 

   New China Express, Meal 9.71 

   Jimmy Johns, Meal 10.00 

   Whiskey Creek, Meal 17.36 

   Super 8 Motel, Trng 137.08   

Capital Business Systems, Re   799.00 

Constellation NewEnergy, Ut 

 

1,261.58 

Library Petty Cash 

 

160.86 

Danko Emergency Equipment, Su   122.71 

Dutton-Lainson, Su 

 

8,926.79 

Endress & Hauser, Ci 

 

5,676.09 

Electric Fund, Op 

 

33,497.40 

Buildings & Grounds, Op 

 

2,000.00 

Emergency Medical Products, Su 

 

494.65 

Fastenal Co, Re, Su 

 

177.60 

Hach Company, Se 

 

522.31 

Hydraulic Equipment Service, Re 

 

1,437.12 

Husker Electric Supply, Re, Ci 

 

1,943.67 

Jackson Services, Se 

 

123.12 

Lincoln Winwater Works, Re, Su 

 

972.76 

Kriha Fluid Power, Re 

 

5.11 

Kriz-Davis, Re 

 

3,988.53 

Windstream Nebraska, Se 

 

48.77 

Matheson Tri-Gas, Su 

 

15.45 

Capital Business Systems, Ma 

 

306.81 

Midwest Service & Sales, Su 

 

2,962.50 

Mid-American Benefits, Ins 

 

1,462.47 

Nebraska Planning & Zoning, Conf 

 

360.00 

Supplyworks, Su 

 

1,453.60 

Orscheln Farm & Home, Su, Bu 

 

52.24 

O'Reilly Auto Parts, Re 

 

127.48 

Norhtern Safety Co, Su 

 

273.11 

Nebraska Wastewater Operators, Ex 

 

30.00 

Pitney Bowes, Se 

 

105.00 

Campbell Cleaning & Restoration, Se 

 

19.98 

Brandon Policky, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Quill Corp, Su 

 

229.41 

Memorial Health-Meals, Su 

 

2,884.62 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 6 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

3 

 

Rumery Lawn & Landscape, Gu 

 

210.00 

Sam's Club, Bu, Su 

 

349.28 

Sam's Club, Su, Bu 

 

244.99 

Schmader Electric, Ma   480.00 

Nebraska Public Health, Se 

 

588.00 

Farmers Coop, Su, Re 

 

13,279.86 

Hireright Solutions, Se 

 

68.30 

Seward Electronics, Su 

 

39.00 

Gerhold Concrete, Su, Ma 

 

5,847.81 

Allison Sommerfeld, Meals   241.65 

Nebraska Workforce Development, Se   54.00 

St P J Supply, Su   16.50 

Salt Creek Software, Ex   1,358.29 

Sports Express, Misc   200.00 

Nebraska Equipment, Eq 

 

12,500.00 

Ultramax, Su 

 

470.00 

US Cellular, Se 

 

183.68 

Wesco Distribution, Ci, Se 

 

12,347.80 

Andrea Baack, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Chasee/Lacey Koch, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Jerod/Sara Olson, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Daniel Hicks, Su 

 

310.45 

Chris/Lori Read, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Doug Theobald, Renfd 

 

30.00 

Todd Lance, Refnd 

 

35.00 

Sam Schluckebier, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Jodi Hibbert, Refnd 

 

35.00 

Joe Halhoff, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Charles Cook, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Jacob/Stacey Parr, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Rich Eber, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Josh Fields, Refnd 

 

30.00 

Adam/Kimberly Hanson, Refnd 

 

8.85 

Taylor Baumeister, Trng 

 

100.00 

Union Equipment Finance, Eq 

 

31,074.44 

Darrin Goracke, Refnd   30.00 

Vance Winter, Refnd   30.00 

Tabitha Phillips, Refnd   30.00 

Michael Langner, Refnd   30.00 

Eugene Hasbrouck, Refnd   30.00 

Trent/April Bartels, Refnd   30.00 

Kyle Royuk, Refnd   30.00 

Michael Moore, Refnd   35.00 

Tuning Guy, Se   100.00 

Greg/Mindy Miller, Refnd   30.00 

   Total 

 

297,202.33 

    

 Aye:  Hans, Schmit, Lieske, Singleton, Beck, Fritz, Kamprath, Pike 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AN INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH SEWARD COUNTY 

FOR NATURAL DISASTER EMERGENCY MUTUAL AID ASSISTANCE 

 

 County Commissioner Diana Garske addressed the City Council stating an 

interlocal cooperation agreement was drafted and is being presented to each 

city/village within the county as a result of the Beaver Crossing tornado in 2014. 

She stated the interlocal provides for a plan for cooperative efforts for mutual 

aid should such an event happen within the City.  

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 7 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

4 

 

 

 City Attorney Hoffschneider stated he had no concerns with the agreement.  

     

 Councilmember Beck introduced the following resolution: 
  

 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-09 

 

 WHEREAS, both of the parties hereto are political subdivisions of the 

State of Nebraska, and  

 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperative Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §13-801 to §13-827, 

permits local governmental units to make the most efficient use of their powers 

to enable them to cooperate with other governmental units in an effort to provide 

services and facilities in a manner that will accord with the needs of their 

local communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

to secure for each party the benefit of mutual aid and protection of life in 

the event of a disaster and/or civil emergency. 

 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement pertains to a Natural Disaster 

Emergency in Seward County, Nebraska where mutual aid for purposes of cleanup 

between the County and City of Seward is beneficial to both parties. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA THAT the aforementioned agreement be approved. 

 

 Councilmember Lieske moved, seconded by Councilmember Hans, that the 

resolution be adopted. Upon vote, the following Councilmembers voted Aye: 

Lieske, Beck, Kamprath, Fritz, Pike, Singleton, Schmit, Hans. Nay: None. Absent: 

None.  

 

Council President Schmit declared the resolution adopted. 

 

Dated: May 5, 2015 

    THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

 

    _____________________________ 

ATTEST:   Chris Schmit 

    Council President 

________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/ 

Clerk-Treasurer 

Budget & HR Director 

 

(SEAL) 

 

4. CONSIDERATION OF LIMITING PARKING TO ONE SIDE ON EASTRIDGE DRIVE NORTH FROM 

HILLCREST DRIVE 

 

Amy Lobmeyer addressed the Council stating that when Concordia University 

has an event, people park on both sides of Eastridge Drive, making it almost 

impossible to turn off of or onto Hillcrest. She said both she and her husband 

have almost had accidents at this intersection due to the congestion. She 

requested the Council consider restricting the parking to one side of Eastridge 

Drive to approximately one hundred feet back of the Eastridge/Hillcrest 

intersection. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 8 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

5 

 

Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director John Hughes 

suggested the City consider reviewing limiting the parking on adjacent streets 

(not just Eastridge Drive) and bring back a proposal for the City Council to 

review.  

 

Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Kamprath, that 

staff be directed to draft a resolution restricting parking to one side of 

the street one hundred feet back of the intersection on all streets intersecting 

with Hillcrest Drive from Columbia Ave East to Eastridge Dr.  

 

 Aye:  Hans, Schmit, Lieske, Singleton, Beck, Fritz, Kamprath, Pike 

 Nay:  None 

 Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

5. PRESENTATION BY BLUESTEM ENERGY SOLUTIONS ON RENEWAL ENERGY OPTIONS 

 

 Adam Herink with Bluestem Energy Solutions, presented information on 

renewable energy options, in particular, wind and solar energy. He stated the 

main advantage of a community considering the renewable energy option is they 

can lock in the prices for 25 years. He briefly reviewed the company’s history, 

community siting process, and relationship with current energy suppliers.  

 

Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director John Hughes stated 

he wants to visit with NMPP to determine how this may impact current rate 

structures and bring the information back to the Council. He stated he thought 

a potential site may be in the area of Tenneco and thought the site could handle 

two wind generators, but there are factors such as noise levels, airport 

clearance, and maintenance to consider. No action was taken. 

  

 ***Council President Schmit stated he was skipping agenda item #6, waiting 

for Mayor Eickmeier to enter the meeting.  

 

7.  CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EQUIPMENT LEASE AGREEMENT 

WITH UNION BANK & TRUST 

 

Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director John Hughes 

presented a resolution for approval of a lease agreement with Union Bank & 

Trust for two mowers; one for the Street Department and the other for the 

Recreation Department, both included in the current budget.  

 

Mayor Eickmeier entered the meeting at 7:38 p.m. and took his place in 

presiding over the remainder of the meeting.  

 

Councilmember Singleton introduced the following resolution: 

 

Resolution No. 2015-10 

 

Schedule of Equipment No. 01, dated 5/5/2015, to Master Equipment Lease Purchase 

Agreement, dated as of 5/5/2015, between Union Bank & Trust Company, as Lessor, 

and City of Seward, as Lessee. 

 

I, the undersigned, the duly appointed, qualified and acting City Clerk of 

the City of Seward do hereby certify this 5th day of May, 2015, as follows: 

 

(1) Lessee did, at a meeting of the governing body of the Lessee held on 

May 5, 2015, by motion duly made, seconded and carried, in accordance 

with all requirements of law, approve and authorize the execution and 

delivery of the above referenced Schedule of Equipment No. 01 on its 

behalf by the following named representative of the Lessee, to witness: 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 9 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

6 

 

________________________________________ 

Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

(2) The above named representative of the Lessee held at the time of such 

authorization and holds at the present time the office set forth above. 

(3) The meeting of the governing body of the Lessee at which the Schedule 

of Equipment No. 1 was approved and authorized to be executed was duly 

called, regularly convened and attended throughout by the requisite 

majority of the members thereof or by other appropriate official approval 

and that the action approving the Schedule of Equipment No. 01 and 

authorizing the execution thereof has not been altered or rescinded. 

(4) No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice 

or the lapse of time or both would constitute, an Event of Default (as 

such term is defined in the above referenced Master Equipment Lease 

Purchase Agreement) exists at the date hereof. 

(5) All insurance required in accordance with the above referenced Master 

Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement is currently maintained by the Lessee. 

(6) Lessee has, in accordance with the requirements of law, fully budgeted 

and appropriated sufficient funds for the current budget year to make 

the Rental Payments scheduled to come due during the Original Term and 

to meet its other obligations for the Original Term (as such terms are 

defined in the above referenced Master Equipment Lease Purchase 

Agreement) and such funds have not been expended for other purposes. 

(7) The fiscal year of Lessee is from October 1 to September 30. 

 

The signatures below from the designated individuals from the Governing Body 

of the Lessee evidence the adoption by the Governing Body of this resolution. 

 

 Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Schmit, that 

the resolution be adopted. Upon vote, the following Councilmembers voted Aye: 

Lieske, Beck, Kamprath, Fritz, Pike, Singleton, Schmit, Hans. Nay: None. Absent: 

None.  

 

The resolution is hereby adopted. 

 

Dated this 5th day of May, 2015. 

 

CITY OF SEWARD 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator 

City Clerk-Treasurer 

Budget & Human Resources Director 

 

6.  UPDATE ON EFFORTS OF CITY OF SEWARD AND/OR SEWARD SCHOOL DISTRICT TO ADDRESS 

WATER RUNOFF/DRAINAGE ISSUES ON STAR STREET PROPERTIES THAT BORDERS THE SEWARD 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AND SEWARD MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 

Mayor Eickmeier stated the City has been assisting with facilitating 

discussion about the water runoff in the Star Street area by gathering and 

providing information. He stated the City obtained a proposal from Jeff Wagner, 

Mainelli Wagner & Associates, Inc., in the amount of $26,210, for costs relating 

to surveying, conducting hydraulic analysis to size the channel needed to handle 

the runoff and a grading plan. He stated this development occurred over 20 

years ago. He said, based on a memo that was found in City records, it looked 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 10 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

7 

 

as though the developer was to get an easement, but it had never been filed. 

In this case, it appears the school district did not fail to follow the plan, 

but the developer failed to follow through. That developer is no longer in 

the area. He said he does not see the City as being responsible, but does not 

know if the school district is responsible either. He stated the school district 

has a copy of the engineer’s proposal.  

 

Councilmember Lieske stated there is an assumption that an easement filed 

by the developer would have addressed the water runoff; however, that is an 

assumption.   

 

Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director John Hughes 

presented the City Council with a memo from Roger Van Ooyen, dated 1993.  

 

Councilmember Kamprath commented that the memo from Mr. Van Ooyen had 

a comment that SCHC (Seward County Housing Corporation) will need to negotiate 

a storm water drainage agreement with the school district, but the memo also 

refers to asking the City to create an improvement district.  

 

Mr. Hughes stated there was a district created, but was for water, sewer 

and street, not storm water.  

 

Councilmember Singleton stated he was on the City Council at the time 

and the development was designed to handle the runoff for the current project, 

but not for any future development or extension. No action was taken. 

 

8.  CONSIDERATION OF A CHANGE OF WORK ORDER ADDING THE WETLAND MITIGATION REPORT 

AND DESIGN SERVICES TO THE KAROL KAY BLVD AGREEMENT 

 

Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director John Hughes stated 

it has been determined, in consultation with the NDOR and Federal officials, 

that the Karol Kay Blvd, Bader-Hillcrest project  be moved to the west side 

of the gully, which involves wetland mitigation. He stated the attached 

amendment allows for the mitigation. 

 

Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

change of work order adding the wetland mitigation report and design services 

with JEO Consulting Group, Inc. be approved in the amount of $9,263.52. 

 

Aye: Hans, Schmit, Lieske, Beck, Pike, Fritz, Singleton 

Nay: Kamprath 

Absent:  None. Motion carried. 

 

9.  CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUESTING ITEMS 

BE PLACED ON THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

 

Councilmember Singleton stated he is requesting approval of an ordinance 

specifying that agenda requests can be received up until 12:00 noon on the 

Wednesday prior to the next City Council meeting; however, the Mayor has the 

authority to change or add items to the agenda up to the 24 hours prior to 

the time of the City Council meeting.  

 

Ordinance NO. 2015-08 establishing a deadline for requesting items be 

placed on the City Council agenda was adopted.  

 

 Councilmember Schmit moved, seconded by Councilmember Pike, that the 

minutes of the proceedings of the Mayor and Council of the City of Seward, 

Seward County, Nebraska in the matter of passing and approving Ordinance No. 

2015-08, “AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE SEWARD MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 11 / 131



May 5, 2015 

 

8 

 

1-600, CITY COUNCIL AGENDAS, POSTING NOTICES & ITEMS; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES 

OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE” be preserved 

and kept in a separate and distinct volume known as “Ordinance Record, City 

of Seward, Nebraska” and that said separate and distinct volume be incorporated 

in and made a part of these proceedings the same as though it were spread at 

large herein. 

 

Aye: Hans, Schmit, Kamprath, Lieske, Beck, Pike, Fritz, Singleton 

Nay: None 

Absent:  None. Motion carried. 

 

10.  CAPITAL PROJECTS REPORT 

 

 Public Facilities/Capital Improvement & GIS Director John Hughes provided 

an update and Capital Projects Report dated 5/5/15. 

 

 Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Kamprath, that 

the Capital Projects Report dated May 5, 2015 be accepted. 

 

Aye: Hans, Lieske, Beck, Schmit, Fritz, Kamprath, Pike, Singleton 

Nay: None. 

Absent: None. Motion carried. 

 

11.  FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION 

  

 None 

  
12.  ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS 

  

A. May 15 – Annie Adamek Retirement Celebration – 1:00-3:00 p.m. – Civic 

Center, West Fireplace Room 

 

B. July 4th Celebration 

 

13.   MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 

Councilmember Singleton moved, seconded by Councilmember Fritz, that 

the May 5, 2015 City Council Meeting be adjourned. 

 

Aye:  Hans, Schmit, Pike, Beck, Fritz, Kamprath, Lieske, Singleton 

Nay:  None 

Absent: None.  Motion carried. 

 

 

                                 THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

__________________________________ 

                                     Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

___________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator 

Clerk-Treasurer 

Budget & Human Resources Director 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 12 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G2

CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA
Claims & Payables Reports

City Clerk-Treasurer Report

City Codes Director Report

Police Department Report

Infrastructure Cost Items Reimbursable Back to the City

Administrative Report: After review of listed Consent Agenda items and supporting 
documents/reports, one motion to approve the consent agenda would be in order. Council may 
choose to pull any item from the Consent Agenda and consider/act on it separately.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 13 / 131



CLAIMS LIST 

      5-19-15 

COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Abbreviations: Bu, Building Upkeep; Eq, Equipment; Ex, Expense; Ma, 

Maintenance; Mi, Mileage; Misc, Miscellaneous; Re, Repairs; Sa, Salaries, Se, 

Services; Su, Supplies; Ut, Utilities, CI, Capital Improvements, Gu, Grounds 

Upkeep. 

     

Payroll 

 

117,940.05 

Ameritas Life Insurance Co., Ins 

 

5,639.26 

Seward Area Chamber of Commerce, Misc 

 

100.00 

A-J Roofing & Waterproofing, Re   16,000.00 

Advanced Floor Care, Ma   250.00 

Alliance Technologies, Se   3,790.00 

Amazon.Com, Su, Eq 

 

1,195.96 

Brock Anderson, Ex 

 

12.00 

Aqua-Chem, Equip, Su, Se 

 

5,265.70 

Baker & Taylor, Su 

 

3,415.16 

Charlotte Baldinger, Mi   29.33 

Barnes & Noble Booksellers, Su   12.80 

Benes Service, Re   160.50 

Berens-Tate Consulting, Se 

 

3,000.00 

Kent Brunckhorst, Ex 

 

171.00 

Capital Business Systems, ma 

 

79.00 

Capital Business Systems, Su 

 

225.00 

Cash-Wa Distributing, Su 

 

618.21 

Library Petty Cash, Bu, Su 

 

192.69 

City-Merchant Services, Se, Fees 

 

1,114.09 

City Seward Wastewater Fund, Transfer 

 

15,000.00 

City Seward Water Sinking Fund, Transfer 

 

20,000.00 

Concordia University, Se 

 

1,000.00 

Cooking with Paula Deen Magazine, Su 

 

36.00 

John Deere Landscapes, Gu 

 

2,588.03 

RR Donnelley, Su 

 

56.56 

Dowding Pool, Opening Cash 

 

400.00 

Electronic Contracting, Se   81.00 

Farmers Coop, Su, Gu 

 

3,219.79 

Fastenal Co, Su, Re 

 

426.46 

G&P Development Landfill, Ex   40.18 

Galls, LLC, Eq 

 

228.87 

Gerhold Concrete, Eq, Re, Su, Gu 

 

3,424.02 

H&S Plumbing Heating, A/C, Bu 

 

1,920.89 

HD Supply Waterworks, Re, Eq 

 

2,429.98 

Hach Company, Su 

 

160.95 

Halls Safety Equipment, Re 

 

168.20 

Hawkins, Su 

 

801.24 

Hemmings Motor News, Su 

 

59.95 

Hobson Automotive & Tire, RE 

 

138.00 

Husker Electric Supply, Bu, Su 

 

115.48 

Hydraulic Equipment Service, RE 

 

497.69 

Interstate All Battery Center, Bu 

 

62.96 

JEO Consulting Group, Se 

 

3,960.00 

Jackson Services, Se 

 

123.12 

Klement Electric, Eq 

 

936.15 

Kriz-Davis, Re 

 

2,359.35 

Last Mile Network, Se 

 

230.00 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 14 / 131



Latsch's, Su 

 

43.58 

Lee's Refrigeration, Bu 

 

274.46 

MC 2 Inc, Su, Gu, Ma 

 

1,257.85 

Matheson Tri-Gas, Su, Su 

 

282.36 

Mattson Ricketts Law Firm, Se 

 

4,400.00 

Memorial Health-Drug, Se 

 

125.00 

Menards, Su 

 

2.80 

Merle's Garden Center, Gu 

 

91.50 

Mid-American Benefits, Ins 

 

524.27 

Midland Scientific, Su 

 

545.97 

Midwest Auto Parts, Re, Su 

 

225.42 

Midwest Automotive, Re 

 

1,004.45 

Midwest Laboratories, Se 

 

1,532.80 

Midwest Turf & Irrigation, Su, Re 

 

883.71 

Monkey Wrench Cycles, Su   150.00 

Municipal Supply, Re 

 

1,058.26 

NADA Used Car Guide, Su 

 

105.00 

Nat'l Audio Co, Su 

 

242.70 

Nebraska Equipment, Re 

 

5.53 

Nebraska Health/Human Services, Ex 

 

115.00 

Nebraska Pub Power, Ut   411,981.32 

Nebraska Rural Water Assn, Dues   275.00 

Nebraska Sports, Su   376.63 

Nebraska Treasurer, Misc   44.62 

Niemann's Port-A-Pot, Gu   375.00 

NIFCO Mechanical Systems, Bu 

 

200.00 

Northern Safety Co, Su, RE 

 

243.32 

OCLC, Se 

 

174.61 

O'Reilly Auto Parts, Su, Re 

 

168.83 

Odeys, Su 

 

82.13 

Olde Glory Theatre, Trng 

 

100.00 

Olsson Associates, Se 

 

17,190.00 

One Call Concepts, Se 

 

106.05 

Orscheln Farm & Home, Su, Gu, Eq 

 

512.35 

Donna Otte, Mi 

 

37.38 

Pac N Save, Su 

 

129.68 

Henry Pankoke, Se 

 

275.00 

Lynn Peavey, Su 

 

163.70 

Pitney Bowes, Su 

 

339.94 

Plains Equipment Group, Su, Re 

 

936.63 

Platte Valley Communications, Re 

 

93.50 

Precision Tool & Machine, Re 

 

35.00 

Quill Corp, Su 

 

1,017.09 

Racom Corporation, Re 

 

898.75 

Record Automatic Doors, Bu 

 

288.25 

Rem Electric, Su 

 

428.00 

Ed Roehr Safety Products, Su   390.00 

Rumery Lawn & Landscape, Gu 

 

324.06 

Rose Equipment, Re   318.27 

Sack Lumber, Gu   59.97 

Seward County Attorney, Se   4,000.00 

Seward County Clerk, Ex   22.25 

Seward County Independent, Se   646.57 

Seward County Public Power, Ut   1,526.54 

Seward County Treasurer, Se   14,959.33 

Seward Lumber & Home Center, Su, Re, Ma   1,071.80 

Seward School District, Misc   2,085.00 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 15 / 131



Seward Veterans Foreign Wars, Gu 

 

35.00 

Sirchiefingerprint Lab, Se 

 

110.76 

Southeast Library System, Misc 

 

25.00 

Sports Express, Su 

 

369.00 

Suhr & Lichty Ins, Ins 

 

616.00 

Supplyworks, Su 

 

1,649.24 

Titan Machinery, Bu 

 

52.25 

USA Bluebook, Bu 

 

484.85 

US Postal Service, Su 

 

245.00 

Marilyn Varner, Su 

 

46.07 

Jack Vavra, Se 

 

8,023.81 

Verizon Wireless, Se 

 

141.79 

Visa, Su 

 

460.99 

  Walmart, Su 139.75 

   Gotprint.com, Su 45.74 

   Accucut, Su 317.50 

   Grey House Publishing, Su -42.00 

 Wesco Distribution, Ci   80,592.40 

Keith West, Se 

 

300.00 

Windstream Ne, Se 

 

2,443.52 

  

790,018.53 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 16 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 17 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 18 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 19 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 20 / 131



Building Permits April - 2015

CURRENT YEAR:  April 2015 LAST YEAR:  April 2014

Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation
NEW CONST. 1 3,121.10$              1,600,000.00$         NEW CONST. 5 2,442.40$           1,163,371.91$          
REMODEL/ADDIT. 20 2,597.20$              712,399.00$            REMODEL/ADDIT. 19 2,224.50$           592,869.00$             
ACCESSORY 8 568.75$                 53,317.50$              ACCESSORY 11 599.50$              118,651.00$             
ELECTRIC 7 219.75$                 -$                         ELECTRIC 3 246.75$              -$                         
PLUMBING 6 225.00$                 -$                         PLUMBING 12 410.00$              -$                         
MECHANICAL 4 205.00$                 -$                         MECHANICAL 5 770.00$              -$                         
SEWER TAP 1 250.00$                 -$                         SEWER TAP 4 1,000.00$           -$                         
WATER TAP 1 820.00$                 -$                         WATER TAP 4 2,900.00$           -$                         
TEMP. ELEC. 1 50.00$                   -$                         TEMP. ELEC. 4 200.00$              -$                         
ELECTRIC SER. 1 400.00$                 -$                         ELECTRIC SER. 4 800.00$              -$                         
TOTALS 50 8,456.80$              2,365,716.50$         TOTALS 71 11,593.15$         1,874,891.91$          

YEAR TO DATE January to December 2015 YEAR TO DATE January to December 2014

Permits Quantitiy Permit Fee Valuation Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation
NEW CONST. 5 5,597.10$              2,444,037.56$         NEW CONST. 11 36,052.23$         18,132,299.06$        
REMODEL/ADDIT. 53 3,733.15$              998,474.00$            REMODEL/ADDIT. 30 288,377.95$       14,167,177.00$        
ACCESSORY 52 8,852.00$              439,129.50$            ACCESSORY 16 15,193.00$         324,948.00$             
ELECTRIC 28 1,441.50$              -$                         ELECTRIC 18 16,246.50$         -$                         
PLUMBING 21 840.00$                 -$                         PLUMBING 37 12,945.00$         -$                         
MECHANICAL 11 525.00$                 -$                         MECHANICAL 21 10,841.00$         -$                         
SEWER TAP 6 1,500.00$              -$                         SEWER TAP 8 13,700.00$         -$                         
WATER TAP 6 4,920.00$              -$                         WATER TAP 8 35,225.00$         -$                         
TEMP. ELEC. 5 250.00$                 -$                         TEMP. ELEC. 8 2,700.00$           -$                         
ELECTRIC SER. 5 1,200.00$              -$                         ELECTRIC SER. 8 13,350.00$         -$                         
TOTALS 192 28,858.75$            3,881,641.06$         TOTALS 165 444,630.68$       32,624,424.06$        

FISCAL YEAR: Oct. 2014 to Sept. 2015  FISCAL YEAR: Oct. 2013 to Sept. 2014

Permits Quantitiy Permit Fee Valuation Permits Quantity Permit Fee Valuation
NEW CONST. 14 10,141.30$            3,830,337.36$         NEW CONST. 22 11,668.03$         4,463,209.06$          
REMODEL/ADDIT. 75 370,172.15$          1,200,466.00$         REMODEL/ADDIT. 65 6,703.45$           2,466,138.00$          
ACCESSORY 86 301,435.75$          620,398.75$            ACCESSORY 27 1,412.50$           251,085.00$             
ELECTRIC 52 3,048.25$              -$                         ELECTRIC 67 5,331.75$           -$                         
PLUMBING 47 2,682.00$              -$                         PLUMBING 125 6,588.00$           -$                         
MECHANICAL 30 2,773.00$              -$                         MECHANICAL 51 5,526.00$           -$                         
SEWER TAP 23 5,750.00$              -$                         SEWER TAP 16 4,000.00$           -$                         
WATER TAP 23 17,245.00$            -$                         WATER TAP 17 12,325.00$         -$                         
TEMP. ELEC. 23 1,150.00$              -$                         TEMP. ELEC. 17 850.00$              -$                         
ELECTRIC SER. 23 4,800.00$              -$                         ELECTRIC SER. 18 4,200.00$           -$                         
TOTALS 396 719,197.45$          5,651,202.11$         TOTALS 425 58,604.73$         7,180,432.06$          

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 21 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 22 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 23 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 24 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 25 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 26 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 27 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G3

PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - CONSIDERATION OF TAX 
INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF) PROJECT - BOTTLE 
ROCKET BREWING, LLC - TIF Attorney, Andrew Willis
Presentation and Review of TIF Application

Presentation and Review of Cost-Benefit Analysis

Presentation and Review of Amendment to Redevelopment Plan

Presentation and Review of Redevelopment Agreement

Consideration of Resolution approving the Redevelopment Plan Amendment

Consideration of a Resolution Approving the Redevelopment Agreement and the Issuance of TIF 
Indebtedness for the Redevelopment Project

Administrative Report: The Community Redevelopment Authority (CRA) approved the project on 
April 29, 2015 by a vote of 4/0 with 1 member abstaining. The Planning Commission held a public 
hearing on May 11, 2015 and approved the project by unanimous vote.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 28 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 29 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 30 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 31 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 32 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 33 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 34 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 35 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 36 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 37 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 38 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 39 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 40 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 41 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 42 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 43 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 44 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 45 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 46 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 47 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 48 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 49 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 50 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 51 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 52 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 53 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 54 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 55 / 131



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 Public notice is hereby given by the Planning Commission of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, that a public hearing will be held at 7:30 p.m. on May 11, 

2015, at the Seward Municipal Building, 142 North 7th Street, Seward, 
Nebraska.  Public notice is hereby also given by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Seward, Nebraska, that a public hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. on 

May 19, 2015, at the Seward Municipal Building, 142 North 7th Street, Seward, 
Nebraska. The purpose of both hearings is to obtain public comment prior to 
the review and consideration of a proposed amendment to the redevelopment 

plan for the City of Seward, including a specific redevelopment project. 
 The property which is the subject of this notice and of the public hearing 

is located at 230 South 5th Street in Seward, and is legally described as follows: 
Lot 7, Block 20, Original Town of Seward, Seward County, 
Nebraska. 

 All interested parties shall be afforded at each public hearing a 
reasonable opportunity to express their views regarding the proposed 

redevelopment plan amendment.  
 /s/Bonnie Otte, City Clerk 
 

 
        
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Please publish one time April 22, 2015 

1 Proof of Publication 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 56 / 131



COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
BOTTLE ROCKET BREWING 

May, 2015 
 

COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS 
(Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 18-2113) 

 
 The cost-benefit analysis for the above referenced project, as described on the 
attached Exhibit A, which will utilize funds authorized by Neb. Rev. Stat. §18-2147, 
can be summarized as follows: 
 
 1. Tax shifts resulting from the approval of the use of funds pursuant 
to Section 18-2147: 
 

 a. Estimate Base Project Area Valuation: $64,970 
 b. Projected Completed Project Assessed Valuation: $832,272 
 c. Projected Tax Increment Base (b. minus a.): $767,302 
 d. Estimated Tax Levy: 1.735900 
 e. Annual Projected Tax Shift: $13,320 
 

Note: The Projected Tax shift is based on assumed values and levy rates; actual 

amounts and rates will vary from those assumptions, and it is understood that the 

actual tax shift may vary materially from the projected amount.  
 
 2. Public infrastructure and community public service needs impacts 
and local tax impacts arising from the approval of the redevelopment project: 
 

 a. Public infrastructure improvements and impacts: 
 

The Project anticipates expenditures of approximately $1,380,000 
for construction and installation of the Project and related and ancillary 
improvements.  It is proposed that approximately $130,800 of these 
expenditures will be financed with the proceeds of tax increment financing 
indebtedness, with the remaining balance to be paid by the Redeveloper.  The 
projected sources and uses of the TIF indebtedness, which will be refined in the 
Redevelopment Agreement for this Project, are set forth in the TIF Sources and 
Uses chart on the attached Exhibit B.  All expenditures financed by tax 
increment financing Indebtedness shall be eligible public expenditures.  It is 
not anticipated that the Project will have a material adverse impact on existing 
public infrastructure.   

 
  b. Local Tax impacts (in addition to impacts of Tax Shifts described 

above): 
  

The Project will create material tax and other public revenue for 
the City and other local taxing jurisdictions.  While the use of tax increment 
financing will defer receipt of a majority of new ad valorem real property taxes 
generated by the Project, it is intended to create a long term benefit and 
substantial increase in property taxes to the City and other local taxing 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 57 / 131



 2 

jurisdictions.  The Project should also generate immediate tax growth for the 
City.  The Project will include an amount of personal property that will be on 
the property tax rolls upon its acquisition and installation.  Additionally, the 
City should realize revenue from personal property and sales tax paid by the 
Redeveloper and the sales tax paid by customers for beer and merchandise. 

 
 3. Impacts on employers and employees of firms locating or expanding 
within the boundaries of the area of the redevelopment project: 
 

  It is not anticipated that the Project will have a material adverse impact 
on employers and employees of firms locating or expanding within the 
boundaries of the area of the redevelopment project.     

 
 4. Impacts on other employers and employees within the City and the 
immediate area that is located outside of the boundaries of the area of the 
redevelopment project: 
 

  The Project should not have a material impact on private sector 
businesses in and around the area outside the boundaries of the 
redevelopment project. The Project is not anticipated to impose a burden or 
have a negative impact on other local area employers.  The Project could be 
seen as providing competition to local bars, but the Project is a different 
business, focused primarily on manufacturing beer.  This manufacturing 
aspect is supported by the tap room and tasting room, but ultimately the 
manufacturing is the primary driver of business.  There are no other breweries 
in the City.  The closest competing craft breweries are in Lincoln, Nebraska.  

 
5. Other impacts determined by the agency to be relevant to the 

consideration of costs and benefits arising from the redevelopment project: 
 

The Project is anticipated to create 4 to 10 jobs in the City within one 
year. Ultimately, the Project could create 10 to 20 full and part time jobs in the 
City.  There is also a tourism component to a craft brewery that should 
positively impact the redevelopment area and the City.  The Project will also 
include unique construction features highlighting the history of the city.  The 
Project will be constructed around the old mill that was built in 1946, which 
will be retained and preserved.  The Redeveloper is also planning energy 
efficiency upgrades that should positively affect its impact on community 
resources and the environment. 

 
There are no other material impacts determined by the agency relevant 

to the consideration of the cost of benefits arising from the Project. 
 
 6. Cost Benefit Analysis Conclusion: 
 

Based upon the findings presented in this cost benefit analysis, the 
benefits outweigh the costs of the proposed Project. 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 58 / 131



 3 

 Approved by the Community Redevelopment Authority, City of Seward this ____ 
day of May, 2015. 
 
 ____________________________________ 
       E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 
 
_____________________________________ 
Bonnie Otte, Secretary 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 59 / 131



 Exhibit A 

EXHIBIT A  
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
 

The Project will consist of the construction of an approximately 6,680 square 
foot craft brewery and tap room and other associated improvements on the following 
real estate: 

 
Lot 7, Block 20, Original Town of Seward, Seward County, Nebraska. 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 60 / 131



 Exhibit B 

EXHIBIT B  
 

PROJECTED TIF SOURCES AND USES 

1.  TIF SOURCES 
   

 
Assumptions: Tax Levy 1.735900 

 

  
Interest Rate 5.5% 

 

  
Number of years 15 

 

     

 

Property Value 
Assumptions: 

 
Assessed Value Estimated Taxes 

  
Pre-Project $64,970 $1,128 

  
Completed Project $832,272 $14,447 

  
Difference $767,302 $13,320 

     

 
TIF Calculations: Annual TIF Amount $13,320 

 

  
Total TIF Amount $199,800 

 

  
Loan Amount $134,850  

 

     

  
less 3% Admin Fee ($4,045.50) 

 

  
Total TIF Available $130,804.50  

 

     

     2. TIF USES Cost of Issuance TBD 
 

  
Site Acquisition $130,000 

 

  
Site Preparation $21,900 

 

  
Total $151,900 

 

     

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4827-9567-0819, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 61 / 131



1 
 

AMENDMENT TO THE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 
OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 
(BOTTLE ROCKET BREWING PROJECT) 

 
 The City of Seward, Nebraska (“City”) has undertaken a plan of 

redevelopment within the community pursuant to the adoption of the 
Redevelopment Plan for a certain redevelopment area in the City of Seward, as 

amended (the “Redevelopment Plan”).  The Redevelopment Plan was approved by 
the City Council of the City as of November 15, 2011.  The Redevelopment Plan 

serves as a guide for the implementation of redevelopment activities within certain 
areas of the City, as set forth in the Redevelopment Plan. 

 
 Pursuant to the Nebraska Community Development Law codified at Neb. 

Rev. Stat.  §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154 (the “Act”), the City created the 
Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward (“CRA”), which has 

administered the Redevelopment Plan for the City.  
 

 The purpose of this Plan Amendment is to identify specific property within 
the redevelopment area that is in need of redevelopment to cause the removal of 

blight and substandard conditions identified as the site located in the in the City 
of Seward, Nebraska, and legally described on the attached and incorporated 

Exhibit “A” (the “Site”).   
 

Description of the Project 
 

 The project under consideration will consist of the construction of an 
approximately 6,680 square foot craft brewery and tap room and associated 

improvements on the Site (the “Project”).   
 

Project 
 

 The Site is in need of redevelopment.  The CRA has considered whether 
redevelopment of the Site will conform to the general plan and the coordinated, 

adjusted, and harmonious development of the City and its environs.  In this 
consideration, the CRA finds that such a redevelopment of the Site will promote 

the health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity, and the general welfare 
of the community including, among other things, the promotion of safety from fire, 

the promotion of the healthful and convenient distribution of population, the 
promotion of sound design and arrangement, the wise and efficient expenditure of 

public funds, and the prevention of the recurrence of unsanitary and unsafe 
dwelling accommodations or conditions of blight.  The blighted condition of the 

Site and the Redevelopment Area has contributed to its inability to attract 
businesses and/or development.  In order to support private development, the Site 

and the Redevelopment Area are in need of renovation and development.   
 

The Site was currently used as a grainery.  There are exterior grain bins and 
concrete that needs to be removed to repurpose and redevelop the Site.  The 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 62 / 131



2 
 

building currently located on the site is inadequate to support a modern business.  
Significant site preparation must be undertaken before the Site can be developed. 

Additionally, the utility infrastructure is not sufficient to support manufacturing 
and will need to be upgraded to be viable for the proposed business.  Because of 

the condition of the property and the upfront costs to remove the blighted and 
substandard conditions from the property, the Project is not feasible without the 

use of tax increment financing.  The site acquisition required site preparation, 
stabilization and the construction of a retaining wall, extension of utilities, and 

other aspects of the Project are eligible expenditures under the Act.  The 
redevelopment of the Site pursuant to this Plan Amendment will include the 

construction of a new brewery and other enhancements of the Project Site and 
Redevelopment Area.  The project is anticipated to eliminate the current blight and 

substandard conditions of the Site and will further the purposes of the Act in 
conformity with the Redevelopment Plan.  The Project will retain part of the 

grainery constructed in 1946, to preserve historical aspects of the Property, while 
constructing a modern brewery manufacturing facility and tap room that will 

enhance the Redevelopment Area and the City. 
 

 Bottle Rocket Brewing, LLC (the “Redeveloper”), have submitted a proposal 
for the redevelopment of the Site to include the construction of the brewery and 

associated improvements.  Redeveloper will pay the costs of the private 
improvements, including all construction of the building.  As part of the Project, 

the CRA shall capture available tax increment from the Site to assist in payment 
for the public improvements listed as eligible expenditures under the Act in the 

Redevelopment Area.  Such public improvements may include, but are not limited 
to: site preparation, utility improvements, energy efficiency enhancements, and 

other improvements deemed feasible and necessary in support of the public 
health, safety, and welfare which qualify as eligible expenditures for public 

improvements under the Act. 
 

 As described above, the project envisions the capture of the incremental 
taxes created by the Project on the Site to pay for those eligible expenditures as set 

forth in the Act.  Attached as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference 
is a consideration of the statutory elements under the Nebraska Community 

Development Law. 
 

Approved by the Community Redevelopment Authority, City of Seward, on 
this ____ day of May, 2015. 

 
_______________________________ 

E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 
 

________________________________ 
Bonnie Otte, Secretary 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 63 / 131



Exhibit A 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description of the Site 

 
The property is located at 230 South 5th Street and is legally described as 

follows: 

 
Lot 7, Block 20, Original Town of Seward, Seward County, Nebraska. 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 64 / 131



Exhibit B 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Statutory Elements 

 
A. Property Acquisition, Demolition and Disposal 

 
 No public acquisition of private property, relocation of families or 

businesses, or the sale of property is necessary to accomplish the Project.  The 
Redeveloper has a contractual right to purchase the property from the current 

owner, and the land will be purchased by Redeveloper. 
 

B. Population Density 
 

 The proposed development at the project site is the construction of a 
brewery and tap house which will not significantly affect population density in the 

project area. 
 

C. Land Coverage 
 

 The Project will consist of constructing a two story building with a total of 
approximately 6,680 square feet. This will include adding approximately 4,800 

square feet of new construction to 1,880 square feet of existing building on the 
approximately 5,040 square foot project site.  The Project will meet the applicable 

land-coverage ratios and zoning requirements as required by the City of Seward. 
 

D. Traffic Flow, Street Layouts, and Street Grades 
 

 No adverse impacts are anticipated with respect to traffic flow, street 
layouts, and street grades.   

 
E. Parking 

 
 The construction of the Project will include construction of all parking 

necessary to satisfy the parking requirements set forth in the applicable zoning 
district.   

 
F. Zoning, Building Code, and Ordinances 

 
 The Site is located in the Commercial zoning district and the Project is a 

permitted use in said zoning district.  No additional zoning, building code, or 
ordinance changes will be necessary for the Project.  The Redeveloper has been 

approved for its required Brewer’s Permit from the Federal Trade and Tax Bureau, 
and is currently working with the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission to obtain 

the necessary state liquor license. 
 

 

 

 
4819-7149-0083, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 65 / 131



1 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(Bottle Rocket Brewing Project) 

 
 This Redevelopment Agreement is made and entered into as of the ____ day of 

May, 2015, by and between the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska (“CRA”) and Bottle Rocket Brewing, LLC, a Nebraska limited 

liability company (“Redeveloper”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The CRA is a duly organized and existing community redevelopment authority, 
a body politic and corporate under the laws of the State of Nebraska, with lawful 

power and authority to enter into this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

B. The City of Seward, in furtherance of the purposes and pursuant to the 
provisions of Article VIII, Section 12 of the Nebraska Constitution and Neb. Rev. Stat. 

§§ 18-2101 to 18-2154, as amended (collectively the “Act”), has adopted a 
Redevelopment Plan for a blighted and substandard area designated by the City, 

including the Redevelopment Area. 
 

C. Redeveloper owns or has contracted to purchase the Project Site which is 
located in the Redevelopment Area. 

 
D. Redeveloper submitted a redevelopment project proposal to redevelop the 

Project Site.   
 

E. The CRA has approved the Redeveloper’s proposed redevelopment project, 
including the utilization of tax-increment financing to provide for the construction of 

the eligible public improvements defined in this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

F. CRA and Redeveloper desire to enter into this Redevelopment Agreement for 
redevelopment of the Project Site. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual 

covenants and agreements herein set forth, CRA and Redeveloper do hereby 
covenant, agree and bind themselves as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 
 

Section 1.01 Terms Defined in this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

 Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the 
following meanings for all purposes of this Redevelopment Agreement, such 

definitions to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms and 
masculine, feminine and neuter gender of any of the terms defined: 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 66 / 131



 

 
2 

 A. “Act” means Article VIII, Section 12 of the Nebraska Constitution, 
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154, as amended, and acts amendatory 

thereof and supplemental thereto. 
 

 B. “City” means the City of Seward, Nebraska. 
 

 C. “County” means Seward County, Nebraska. 
 

 D. “CRA” means Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska. 

 
 E. “Effective Date” means January 1, 2016. 

 
 F. “Eligible Project Costs” means only costs or expenses incurred by 

Redeveloper for Public Improvements that are eligible for reimbursement under the 
Act. 

 
 G. “Minimum Project Valuation” means the amount of Eight Hundred 

Thirty Two Thousand Two Hundred Seventy Two and No/100 Dollars 
($832,272.00). 

 
 H. “Private Improvements” means all the private improvements to be 

constructed on the Project Site as more particularly described on Exhibit “A”. 
 

I. “Project” means the work undertaken in the Redevelopment Area 
which is necessary or incidental to the proper clearance, development, or 

redevelopment of blighted and substandard conditions in the Redevelopment Area, 
which shall include improvements to the Project Site and adjacent thereto, 

including the Private Improvements and Public Improvements defined herein and 
described on Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated by this reference. 

 
 J. “Project Completion Date” means December 31, 2015. 

 
K. “Project Site” means all that certain real property situated in the City 

of Seward, Seward County, Nebraska, more particularly described on Exhibit “A”. 
 

 L. “Public Improvements” shall include all the public improvements 
more particularly described on Exhibit “A” which are eligible improvements under 

the Act.  The costs of the Public Improvements include the debt service payments 
of the TIF Indebtedness. 

 
 M. “Redeveloper” means Bottle Rocket Brewing, LLC, a Nebraska limited 

liability company. 
 

 N. “Redevelopment Agreement” means this Redevelopment Agreement 
between the CRA and Redeveloper with respect to the Project. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 67 / 131



 

 
3 

 O. “Redevelopment Area” means the Redevelopment Area #1 that is set 
forth in the Redevelopment Plan. 

 
 P. “Redevelopment Plan” means the Redevelopment Plan for the 

Redevelopment Area by the CRA and approved by the City pursuant to the Act, as 
amended from time to time. 

 
 Q. “Tax Increment” means incremental ad valorem taxes generated by 

the Project which are allocated to and paid to the CRA pursuant to the Act, as 
more particularly described in Section 3.02 of this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
 R. “TIF Indebtedness” means any bonds, notes, loans and advances of 

money or other indebtedness, including interest thereon, issued by the CRA or the 
City secured in whole or in part by the Tax Increment. 

 
Section 1.02 Construction and Interpretation. 

 
 The provisions of this Redevelopment Agreement shall be construed and 

interpreted in accordance with the following provisions: 
 

 (a) This Redevelopment Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance 
with and governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska, including the Act. 

 
 (b) Wherever in this Redevelopment Agreement it is provided that any 

person may do or perform any act or thing the word “may” shall be deemed 
permissive and not mandatory and it shall be construed that such person shall 

have the right, but shall not be obligated, to do and perform any such act or thing. 
 

 (c) The phrase “at any time” shall be construed as meaning “at any time 
or from time to time.” 

 
 (d) The word “including” shall be construed as meaning “including, but 

not limited to.” 
 

 (e) The words “will” and “shall” shall each be construed as mandatory. 
 

 (f) The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” “hereinafter” and words of 
similar import shall refer to the Redevelopment Agreement as a whole rather than 

to any particular paragraph, section or subsection, unless the context specifically 
refers thereto. 

 
 (g) Forms of words in the singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter 

shall be construed to include the other forms as the context may require. 
 

 (h) The captions to the sections of this Redevelopment Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not be deemed part of the text of the respective 

sections and shall not vary by implication or otherwise any of the provisions 
hereof. 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 68 / 131



 

 
4 

 
ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Section 2.01 Representations by the CRA. 
 

 The CRA makes the following representations and findings: 
 

(a)  The CRA is a duly organized and validly existing community 
redevelopment authority under the Act. 

 
(b) The CRA deems it to be in the public interest and in furtherance of 

the purposes of the Act to accept the proposal submitted by Redeveloper for the 
redevelopment of the Project Site as specified herein. 

 
(c) The Project will achieve the public purposes of the Act by, among 

other things, increasing employment, increasing the tax base, and lessening 
blighted and substandard conditions in the Redevelopment Area. 

 
Section 2.02 Representations of Redeveloper. 

 
 Redeveloper makes the following representations and findings: 

 
 (a) Redeveloper is a Nebraska limited liability company, having the power 

to enter into this Redevelopment Agreement and perform all obligations contained 
herein and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this 

Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

 (b) The execution and delivery of the Redevelopment Agreement and the 
consummation of the transactions therein contemplated will not conflict with or 

constitute a breach of or default under any bond, debenture, note or other 
evidence of indebtedness or any contract, loan agreement or lease to which 

Redeveloper is a party or by which it is bound, or result in the creation or 
imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature upon any of the 

property or assets of Redeveloper contrary to the terms of any instrument or 
agreement. 

 
 (c) There is no litigation pending or to the best of its knowledge 

threatened against Redeveloper affecting its ability to carry out the acquisition, 
construction, equipping and furnishing of the Project or the carrying into effect of 

this Redevelopment Agreement or, except as disclosed in writing to the CRA, as to 
any other matter materially affecting the ability of Redeveloper to perform its 

obligations hereunder. 
 

 (d) Redeveloper owns or has contracted to purchase the Project Site, in 
fee simple and free from any liens, encumbrances, or restrictions which would 

prevent the performance of this Agreement by Redeveloper. 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 69 / 131



 

 
5 

ARTICLE III 
OBLIGATIONS OF THE CRA AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Section 3.01 Capture of Tax Increment. 

 
 Subject to the contingencies described below and to all of the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, commencing for the tax year of the Effective Date 
and continuing thereafter, the CRA shall capture the Tax Increment from the 

Private Improvements pursuant to the Nebraska Community Development Law.  
The CRA shall divide the ad valorem tax and capture the Tax Increment generated 

by the Project Site for a total period of not to exceed fifteen (15) years after the 
Private Improvements have been included in the assessed valuation of the Project 

Site and is generating the Tax Increment subject to capture by the CRA.  The 
effective date of this provision shall be the Effective Date.  The CRA shall file with 

the County Assessor the “Notice to Divide Taxes” on or prior to August 1st in the 
year of the Effective Date. 

 
Section 3.02 Tax Increment.   

 
 The term Tax Increment shall mean, in accordance with Neb. Rev. 

Stat. § 18-2147 of the Nebraska Community Development Law, the difference 
between the ad valorem tax which is produced by the tax levy (fixed each year by 

the County Board of Equalization) for the Project Site before the completion of the 
construction of the Private Improvements and the ad valorem tax which is 

produced by the tax levy for the Project Site after completion of construction of the 
Private Improvements as part of the Project.  For this Project, the anticipated Tax 

Increment is the difference between the projected taxes payable for 2016 (after 
construction completion) and the taxes payable for 2015 (before completion of 

construction), as more particularly set forth on Exhibit “B”.   
 

Section 3.03 Issuance of TIF Indebtedness.   
 

(a) On or after thirty (30) days following the approval and execution of 
this Agreement, the CRA shall incur or issue Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness in the 

estimated amount of One Hundred Thirty Four Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty and 
No/100 Dollars ($134,850.00), as calculated on the attached and incorporated 

Exhibit “B”, to be purchased by the Redeveloper or a lender of the Redeveloper.  
The Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness, which shall be in the form of a TIF Promissory 

Note, shall not be a general obligation of the CRA or City which shall issue such 
Note solely as a conduit.  The Redeveloper shall locate a lender or other entity to 

acquire and fund the acquisition of the TIF Note for this Redeveloper TIF 
Indebtedness.  The Redeveloper Indebtedness shall be secured by a pledge or 

assignment of the Tax Increment or otherwise secured by the Redeveloper as 
required by the lender. 

 
(b) The parties acknowledge that there are additional eligible public 

improvements within the Redevelopment Area that would benefit the Project and 
the City including, but not limited to, additional street and infrastructure 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 70 / 131



 

 
6 

improvements, utility improvements, public space enhancements, public facility 
improvements, landscaping, the implementation and financing of a CRA program 

of voluntary or compulsory repair, rehabilitation, or demolition of buildings and 
other improvements in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan, and the removal 

of blighted and substandard conditions, that are being included in the Project as 
CRA Improvements.  If the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness is fully repaid prior to the 

end of the fifteen (15) year tax increment capture period, the CRA shall have the 
right to incur or issue CRA TIF Indebtedness in an amount reasonably determined 

by the CRA to be used for the construction and completion of the CRA 
Improvements.  The CRA TIF Indebtedness may be issued in the form of a CRA TIF 

promissory note, loan, advance of money, or any form of indebtedness incurred by 
the CRA, and the CRA shall capture any remaining Tax Increment to pay the CRA 

TIF Indebtedness in the Redevelopment Area.  The CRA TIF Indebtedness shall in 
no case be a general obligation of the CRA or City. 

 
Section 3.04  Use of TIF Indebtedness. 

 
(a) CRA will collect the Tax Increment and use said Tax Increment to 

pay debt service on the TIF Indebtedness incurred as provided in Section 3.03 
of this Redevelopment Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the amount of 

the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness that the CRA agrees to service and repay with 
the Tax Increment shall not exceed the amount of the Eligible Project Costs 

certified pursuant to Section 4.02. In addition, the CRA shall retain an amount 
sufficient to pay its reasonable and necessary cost of issuance, including 

attorney fees, and a CRA administration fee in the amount of three percent (3%) 
of the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness.  The Tax Increment, less the CRA’s costs 

set forth above, shall be paid pursuant to the terms and schedules of any TIF 
Promissory Note or TIF resolution issued by the CRA relating to this Project. 

 
(b) Upon the repayment in full of the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness, the 

CRA shall retain the Tax Increment to pay the CRA TIF Indebtedness, if the CRA 
issues or incurs any CRA TIF Indebtedness pursuant to Section 3.03(b).  The CRA 

shall not be obligated to issue any CRA TIF Indebtedness. 
 

Section 3.05 Creation of Fund. 
 

CRA will create a special fund to collect and hold the receipts of the Tax 
Increment. Such special fund shall be used for no purpose other than to: (1) 

pay TIF Indebtedness issued pursuant to Section 3.03 above; and (2) hold any 
Tax Increment until such time as the CRA commences the public improvements 

and incurs the CRA TIF Indebtedness described in Section 3.03(b). 
 

Section 3.06 Projected TIF Sources and Uses. 
 

In addition to the Redeveloper TIF Indebtedness calculation formula set 
forth on Exhibit “B”, Redeveloper’s anticipated TIF sources and eligible uses are 

attached and incorporated for the parties’ reference as Exhibit “C.”   
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 71 / 131



 

 
7 

ARTICLE IV 
OBLIGATIONS OF REDEVELOPER 

 
Section 4.01 Construction of Project; Insurance. 

 
 (a) Redeveloper will complete the Public Improvements and the Private 

Improvements as described on Exhibit “A” and install all equipment necessary to 
operate the Public Improvements and the Private Improvements no later than the 

Project Completion Date.  Redeveloper shall be solely responsible for obtaining all 
permits and approvals necessary to acquire, construct and equip the Public 

Improvements and the Private Improvements.  Until construction of the Public 
Improvements and the Private Improvements has been completed, Redeveloper 

shall make reports in such detail and at such times as may be reasonably 
requested by the CRA as to the actual progress of Redeveloper with respect to 

construction of the Public Improvements and the Private Improvements.  Promptly 
after completion by Redeveloper of the Public Improvements and the Private 

Improvements, Redeveloper shall furnish to the CRA a Certificate of Completion in 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated by this reference.  When 

signed and accepted by the CRA, the certification by Redeveloper shall be a 
conclusive determination of satisfaction of the agreements and covenants in this 

Redevelopment Agreement with respect to the obligations of Redeveloper to 
construct the Public Improvements and the Private Improvements. 

 
 (b) Any contractor chosen by Redeveloper or Redeveloper itself shall be 

required to obtain and keep in force at all times until completion of construction, 
policies of insurance including coverage for contractors’ general liability and 

completed operations (provided that Redeveloper may self-insure in lieu of 
obtaining and keeping in force such policy of insurance) and a penal bond as 

required by the Act.  Redeveloper shall be named as an additional insured.  Any 
contractor chosen by Redeveloper or Redeveloper itself, as an owner, shall be 

required to purchase and maintain property insurance upon the Project to the full 
insurable value thereof (provided that Redeveloper may self-insure in lieu of 

obtaining and keeping in force such policy of insurance). This insurance shall 
insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and shall include “special 

causes of loss” insurance for physical loss or damage.  
 

 (c) Redeveloper shall have no obligation to construct or complete any 
CRA improvements that will be constructed with the CRA TIF Indebtedness, 

pursuant to Section 3.03(b) of this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

Section 4.02  Cost Certification. 
 

Redeveloper shall submit to CRA a certification of Eligible Project Costs, 
after expenditure of such project costs. Redeveloper may, at its option, submit 

one or more partial Eligible Project Costs Certifications prior to expenditure of 
all Eligible Project Costs providing certification of receipt of billings for work in 

progress. All Eligible Project Costs Certifications shall be subject to review and 
approval by the CRA. Determinations by the CRA whether costs included in the 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 72 / 131



 

 
8 

Eligible Project Costs Certification are properly included in Eligible Project 
Costs as defined in this Agreement shall be made in its sole discretion and 

shall be conclusive and binding on Redeveloper. 
 

Section 4.03 No Discrimination. 
 

 Redeveloper agrees and covenants for itself, its successors and assigns that 
as long as this Redevelopment Agreement is outstanding, it will not discriminate 

against any person or group of persons on account of race, sex, color, religion, 
national origin, ancestry, disability, marital status or receipt of public assistance 

in connection with the Project.  Redeveloper, for itself and its successors and 
assigns, agrees that during the construction of the Project, Redeveloper will not 

discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability, marital status or receipt of 

public assistance.  Redeveloper will comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws related to the Project. 

 
Section 4.04 Pay Real Estate Taxes. 

 
(a) Redeveloper intends to create a taxable real property valuation of the 

Project and Project Site of not less than the Minimum Project Valuation no later 
than the Effective Date.  During the period of this Agreement, Redeveloper, its 

successors and assigns, will: (1) not protest a real estate property valuation of the 
Project and Project Site to a sum less than or equal to the Minimum Project 

Valuation; and (2) not convey the Project Site or structures thereon to any entity 
which would be exempt from the payment of real estate taxes or cause the 

nonpayment of such real estate taxes. 
 

(b) If, during the period of this Agreement, the Project Site is assessed at 
less than the Minimum Project Valuation, Redeveloper shall either: (1) successfully 

protest the valuation of the Project Site upwards such that the valuation is equal 
to or greater than the Minimum Project Valuation; or (2) make a payment in lieu of 

taxes in the amount the anticipated Tax Increment, as defined in Exhibit “B”, 
exceeds the actual Tax Increment. 

 
Section 4.05 No Assignment or Conveyance. 

 
 Redeveloper shall not convey, assign or transfer the Project Site or any 

interest therein prior to the termination of the 15 year period commencing on the 
Effective Date specified in Section 3.01 hereof without the prior written consent of 

the CRA, which shall not be unreasonably withheld and which the CRA may make 
subject to any terms or conditions it reasonably deems appropriate, except for the 

following conveyance, which shall be permitted without consent of the CRA: 
 

(a) any conveyance as security for indebtedness (i) previously incurred by 
Redeveloper or incurred by Redeveloper after the effective date for Project costs or 

any subsequent physical improvements to the premises with the outstanding 
principal amount of all such indebtedness (whether incurred prior to or after the 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 73 / 131



 

 
9 

effective date of this Agreement) secured by the Project Site which shall have lien 
priority over the obligations of Redeveloper pursuant to this Redevelopment 

Agreement, or (ii) any additional or subsequent conveyance as security for 
indebtedness incurred by Redeveloper for Project costs or any subsequent physical 

improvements to the premises provided that any such conveyance shall be subject 
to the obligations of Redeveloper pursuant to this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE V 

FINANCING PROJECT; ENCUMBRANCES 
 

Section 5.01 Financing. 
 

 (a) Redeveloper shall pay all costs for the construction of the Private 
Improvements and the Public Improvements.  Redeveloper shall be responsible for 

arranging all necessary financing for the construction of the Public Improvements 
and Private Improvements, including, with respect to the Public Improvements, the 

TIF Indebtedness.  
 

 (b) Notwithstanding Redeveloper’s obligation above, the CRA shall pay 
the cost of and shall be responsible for arranging all necessary financing for any 

CRA improvements that shall be constructed utilizing the CRA TIF Indebtedness, 
pursuant to Section 3.03(b) of this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
Section 5.02 Encumbrances. 

 
 Redeveloper shall not create any lien, encumbrance or mortgage on the 

Project or the Project Site except, (a) encumbrances which secure indebtedness 
incurred to acquire, construct and equip the Project or for any other physical 

improvements to the Project Site, (b) easements and rights of entry granted by 
Redeveloper, (c) construction and materialman liens that may be filed in 

connection with the construction of the Private Improvements so long as any such 
lien is discharged or bonded within 90 days of completion of the Private 

Improvements, and (d) any other liens so long as any such lien is satisfied and 
released or substitute security is posted in lieu thereof within 90 days of 

Redeveloper receiving notice thereof. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
DEFAULT, REMEDIES; INDEMNIFICATION 

 
Section 6.01 General Remedies of the CRA and Redeveloper. 

 
 Subject to the further provisions of this Article VI, in the event of any failure 

to perform or breach of this Redevelopment Agreement or any of its terms or 
conditions, by either party hereto or any successor to such party, such party, or 

successor, shall, upon written notice from the other, proceed immediately to 
commence such actions as may be reasonably designed to cure or remedy such 

failure to perform or breach which cure or remedy shall be accomplished within a 
reasonable time by the diligent pursuit of corrective action.  In case such action is 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 74 / 131



 

 
10 

not taken, or diligently pursued, or the failure to perform or breach shall not be 
cured or remedied within a reasonable time, this Redevelopment Agreement shall 

be in default and the aggrieved party may institute such proceedings as may be 
necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this Redevelopment Agreement, 

including, but not limited to, proceedings to compel specific performance by the 
party failing to perform or in breach of its obligations; provided that, in view of the 

additional remedies of the CRA set out in Section 6.02, the remedy of specific 
performance by Redeveloper shall not include or be construed to  include the 

covenant to build or construct the Private Improvements or Project. 
 

Section 6.02 Additional Remedies of the CRA. 
 

 In the event that: 
 

(a) Redeveloper, or successor in interest, shall fail to complete the 
construction of the Project on or before the Project Completion Date, or shall 

abandon construction work for any period of 120 days (not including any period 
covered pursuant to the terms of Section 6.04 below); 

 
(b) Redeveloper, or successor in interest, shall fail to pay real estate taxes 

or assessments on the Project Site or any part thereof when due, and such taxes 
or assessments or payments in lieu of taxes shall not have been paid, or provisions 

satisfactory to the CRA made for such payment within thirty (30) days following 
written notice from the CRA;  

 
(c) Redeveloper does not maintain an assessed valuation equal to or 

greater than the Minimum Project Valuation for the Project Site for the term of this 
Agreement and fails to satisfy the obligations of Section 4.04(b) of this Agreement; 

or 
 

(d) There is, in violation of Section 4.05 of this Redevelopment 
Agreement, transfer of the Project Site or any part thereof, and such failure or 

action by Redeveloper has not been cured within 30 days following written notice 
from the CRA,  

 
then Redeveloper shall be in default of this Redevelopment Agreement; and such 

failure to perform, breach or default is not cured in the period herein provided, the 
parties agree that the damages caused to the CRA would be difficult to determine 

with certainty.  To the extent that such failure results in the fact that the CRA is 
not able to capture the full amount of the anticipated Tax Increment contemplated 

hereunder, Redeveloper shall be obligated, on an annual basis, to remit the sum 
by which the anticipated Tax Increment exceeds the actual Tax Increment. 

 
Section 6.03  Remedies in the Event of Other Redeveloper Defaults. 

 
 In the event Redeveloper fails to perform any other provisions of this 

Redevelopment Agreement (other than those specific provisions contained in 
Section 6.02), and such failure has not been cured within 30 days following 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 75 / 131



 

 
11 

written notice from the CRA, then Redeveloper shall be in default.  In such an 
instance, the CRA may seek to enforce the terms of this Redevelopment Agreement 

or exercise any other remedies that may be provided in this Redevelopment 
Agreement or by applicable law; provided, however, that the default covered by this 

Section shall not give rise to a right or rescission or termination of this 
Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
Section 6.04  Limitation of Liability; Indemnification. 

 
 (a) Notwithstanding anything in this Article VI or this Redevelopment 

Agreement to the contrary, neither the CRA, City, nor their officers, directors, 
employees, agents or their governing bodies shall have any pecuniary obligation or 

monetary liability under this Redevelopment Agreement.  The obligation of the CRA 
on any TIF Indebtedness shall be limited solely to the Tax Increment pledged as 

security for such TIF Indebtedness.  Specifically, but without limitation, neither 
City nor the CRA shall be liable for any costs, liabilities, actions, demands, or 

damages for failure of any representations, warranties or obligations hereunder.  
Redeveloper releases the CRA and the City from and agrees that the CRA and the 

City shall not be liable for any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death 
of any person that may be occasioned by any cause whatsoever pertaining to the 

Private Improvements.   
 

 (b) Redeveloper agrees to indemnify, defend (at the CRA’s and/or the 
City’s option) and hold harmless the CRA, the City, their respective employees, 

officials, agents, representatives and volunteers from and against any and all 
liabilities, damages, injuries (including death), property damage (including loss of 

use), claims, liens, judgments, costs, expenses, suits, actions, or proceedings and 
reasonable attorney’s fees, and actual damages of any kind or nature, arising out 

of or in connection with any aspect of the acts, omissions, negligence or willful 
misconduct of Redeveloper, its employees, agents, officers, contractors or 

subcontractors, or Redeveloper’s performance or failure to perform under the 
terms and conditions of this Redevelopment Agreement.  Such indemnification, 

hold harmless and defense obligation shall exclude only such liability actions as 
arise directly out of acts, omissions, or the sole negligence or willful misconduct of 

the CRA or the City.  The indemnification and defense obligations set forth herein 
shall survive the termination of this Redevelopment Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Section 7.01  Memorandum.  
 

A Memorandum of this Redevelopment Agreement shall be recorded with the 
County Register of Deeds.  The form of the Memorandum is attached as Exhibit 

“E” and incorporated by this reference. 
 

Section 7.02  Governing Law. 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 76 / 131



 

 
12 

 This Redevelopment Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Nebraska, including the Act. 

 
Section 7.03  Binding Effect; Amendment. 

 
 This Redevelopment Agreement shall be binding on the parties hereto and 

their respective successors and assigns.  This Redevelopment Agreement shall run 
with the Project Site.  The Redevelopment Agreement shall not be amended except 

by a writing signed by the party to be bound. 
 

Section 7.04  No Agency or Partnership.  
 

This Redevelopment Agreement is not intended and shall not be construed 
to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture or 

association as between the CRA and the City, on the one hand, and Redeveloper, 
on the other hand, nor between the CRA and the City, on the one hand, and any 

officer, employee, contractor or representative of Redeveloper, on the other hand.  
No joint employment is intended or created by this Redevelopment Agreement for 

any purpose.  Redeveloper agrees to so inform its employees, agents, contractors 
and subcontractors who are involved in the implementation of or construction 

under this Redevelopment Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CRA and Redeveloper have signed this 
Redevelopment Agreement as of the date and year first above written. 

 
 

[Signature and Notary Pages to Follow] 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 77 / 131



 

 
13 

“CRA” 
 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
 

ATTEST: 
 

By:________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 Bonnie Otte, Secretary  E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 
 

 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of May, 
2015, by E. Thomas Spunaugle and Bonnie Otte, Chairman and Secretary 

respectively of the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, 
Nebraska, a public body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 78 / 131



 

 
14 

 
 “REDEVELOPER” 

 
BOTTLE ROCKET BREWING, LLC, a 

Nebraska limited liability company  
      

  
      By:        

       Gerald Homp, President 
 

 
STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 

 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of May, 

2015, by Gerald Homp, President of Bottle Rocket Brewing, LLC, a Nebraska 
limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 79 / 131



Exhibit “A” 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 

 The Project undertaken by Redeveloper on the Project Site, defined as the 

real estate legally described as: 
 

Lot 7, Block 20, Original Town of Seward, Seward County, 

Nebraska (the “Project Site”)  
 

shall consist of the following: 
 

(a) Private Improvements. The construction of an approximately 

6,680 square foot craft brewery and tap room, and the 
associated improvements within the Redevelopment Area. 

 

(b) Public Improvements.  Site acquisition, site preparation, and 
other eligible public improvements on the Project Site and in 
the Redevelopment Area, which public improvements are 

eligible improvements under the Act pursuant to this 
Redevelopment Agreement; paid for, in part, by the Tax 

Increment created by the Private Improvements.   

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 80 / 131



Exhibit “B” 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

REDEVELOPER TIF INDEBTEDNESS 
 

1. Principal Amount.  The principal amount of the Redeveloper TIF 
Indebtedness shall be the amount, together with interest accruing thereon, 

which can be amortized by December 31, 2031, solely from the Tax 
Increment Revenues based upon the current aggregate ad valorem tax rate 

applicable to the Project Site multiplied by an assumed valuation of 
$832,272, subject to required debt service coverage, required reserve, and 

cost of issuance.  
 

2. Anticipated Tax Increment:  $13,320 annually.  The ad valorem taxes 
shall be divided for a period not to exceed 15 years. 

 
3. Payments.  Semi-annually with interest only until real estate taxes are fully 

collected for the tax year 2106 in an amount sufficient to fully amortize the 
TIF Indebtedness on or before the Maturity Date.   

 
4. Maturity Date.  On or before December 31, 2031. 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 81 / 131



Exhibit “C” 
1 

 

EXHIBIT “C”  

 
PROJECTED TIF SOURCES AND USES 

 

1.  TIF SOURCES 
   

 
Assumptions: Tax Levy 1.735900 

 

  
Interest Rate 5.5% 

 

  
Number of years 15 

 

     

 

Property Value 
Assumptions: 

 
Assessed Value Estimated Taxes 

  
Pre-Project $64,970 $1,128 

  
Completed Project $832,272 $14,447 

  
Difference $767,302 $13,320 

     

 
TIF Calculations: Annual TIF Amount $13,320 

 

  
Total TIF Amount $199,800 

 

  
Loan Amount $134,850  

 

     

  
less 3% Admin Fee ($4,045.50) 

 

  
Total TIF Available $130,804.50  

 

     

     2. TIF USES Cost of Issuance TBD 
 

  
Site Acquisition $130,000 

 

  
Site Preparation $21,900 

 

  
Total $151,900 

 

     

      

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 82 / 131



Exhibit “D” 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS 

(Bottle Rocket Brewing Project) 
 

 
The undersigned certifies, represents and warrants to the City of Seward, 

Nebraska, and the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, 
Nebraska (“CRA”) with regard to the following real property situated in the City of 

Seward, Seward County, Nebraska, to wit: 
 

Lot 7, Block 20, Original Town of Seward, Seward County, Nebraska, 
 

that the Private Improvements required to be constructed by the Redeveloper upon 
the above described property have been satisfactorily completed in accordance 

with the requirements of the Redevelopment Agreement dated ____________, 2015, 
as referenced in the Memorandum of Redevelopment Agreement recorded as 

Instrument No. ___________ in the office of the Register of Deeds for Seward 
County, Nebraska. 

 
 “REDEVELOPER” 

 
BOTTLE ROCKET BREWING, LLC, a 

Nebraska limited liability company  
      

  
      By:        

       Gerald Homp, President 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 83 / 131



Exhibit “D” 
2 

 
STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 

    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 

 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 

_________, 2015, by Gerald Homp, President of Bottle Rocket Brewing, LLC, a 
Nebraska limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

 
 

 
ACCEPTED by the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska this ______ day of ______________________, 2015. 
 

“CRA” 
 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
 

ATTEST: 
 

By:________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 Bonnie Otte, Secretary  E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 
 

 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
_________, 2015, by E. Thomas Spunaugle and Bonnie Otte, Chairman and 

Secretary respectively of the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, a public body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 
 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 84 / 131



Exhibit “E” 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT “E” 

 
MEMORANDUM OF REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

(Bottle Rocket Brewing Project) 
 

 This Memorandum of Redevelopment Agreement (“Memorandum”) is made 
this ___ day of May, 2015 by and between the Community Redevelopment 

Authority of the City of Seward, Nebraska (“CRA”) and Bottle Rocket Brewing, LLC, 
a Nebraska limited liability company (“Redeveloper”). 

  
 1. Redevelopment Agreement.  CRA and Redeveloper have entered into 

that certain Redevelopment Agreement dated as of this even date, describing the 
public improvements being made by the CRA in the Redevelopment Area and the 

private improvements being made to real property owned by Redeveloper and 
legally described as: 

 
Lot 7, Block 20, Original Town of Seward, Seward County, 

Nebraska (the “Project Site”).   
 

 2. Tax Increment Financing.  The Redevelopment Agreement provides 
for the capture of the Tax Increment, as defined therein, by the CRA of the private 

improvements to be made by the Redeveloper for a period not to exceed fifteen (15) 
years after the Project Effective Date of January 1, 2016.  The Tax Increment so 

captured by the CRA shall be used to make the public improvements as described 
in the Redevelopment Agreement.   

 
 3. Remaining Terms.  The rest and remaining terms of the 

Redevelopment Agreement are hereby incorporated into this Memorandum as if 
they were set forth in full.  A full and correct copy of the Redevelopment Agreement 

may be inspected at the CRA offices in Seward, Nebraska. 
 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW] 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 85 / 131



Exhibit “E” 
2 

 
“CRA” 

 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 
ATTEST: 

 
By:________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

 Bonnie Otte, Secretary  E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA  ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of May, 
2015, by E. Thomas Spunaugle and Bonnie Otte, Chairman and Secretary 

respectively of the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, 
Nebraska, a public body corporate and politic, on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 

              
       Notary Public 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 86 / 131



Exhibit “E” 
3 

 “REDEVELOPER” 
 

BOTTLE ROCKET BREWING, LLC, a 
Nebraska limited liability company  

      
  

      By:        
       Gerald Homp, President 

 
 

STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 
    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF SEWARD ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of May, 
2015, by Gerald Homp, President of Bottle Rocket Brewing, LLC, a Nebraska 

limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 
 

 
              

       Notary Public 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
4845-6265-7827, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 87 / 131



  

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 

(“THE 1933 ACT”) AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNED, SOLD OR 

HYPOTHECATED UNLESS A REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE 1933 ACT 

SHALL BE IN EFFECT WITH RESPECT THERETO AND THERE SHALL HAVE BEEN 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE 1933 ACT AND ALL APPLICABLE RULES AND 

REGULATIONS THEREUNDER, OR THERE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEWARD PRIOR TO 

TRANSFER, ASSIGNMENT, SALE OR HYPOTHECATION AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, 

SATISFACTORY TO THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SEWARD TO THE EFFECT THAT REGISTRATION UNDER THE 1933 ACT IS 

NOT REQUIRED. 

 

Registered Registered 

 

No. 1 $________ 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

OF THE CITY OF SEWARD 

 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT REVENUE NOTE 

(BOTTLE ROCKET BREWING PROJECT) 

SERIES 2015A 

 

Maturity Date Original Issuance Date 

December 15, 2031 ______________, 2015 

 

Registered Holder Principal Amount 

 $[TBD] 

 

Interest Rate:  

[TBD] 

 

 THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA (the “Issuer”), a body politic and corporate organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Nebraska, for value received hereby promises to pay, solely from 

the source and as hereinafter provided, to the Registered Holder identified above, or registered 

assigns, the Principal Amount identified above at the office of the Seward City Treasurer, as 

Paying Agent and Registrar, and in like manner to pay solely from said source interest on said 

principal sum at the Interest Rate identified above from the Original Issuance Date identified 

above or from the most recent date to which interest has not been paid.  Accrued Interest shall be 

payable in three (3) installments due December 15, 2015, June 15, 2016, and December 15, 

2016.  Thereafter principal and accrued interest shall be payable in thirty (30) semi-annual 

installments due June 15, 2017, December 15, 2017, and each June 15 and December 15 

thereafter through December 15, 2031, when all principal and accrued interest shall be due and 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 88 / 131



  2 

payable.  Except with respect to interest not punctually paid, the principal and interest on this 

Note will be paid by check or draft mailed to the Registered Holder in whose name this Note is 

registered at the close of business on the fifteenth calendar day next preceding the applicable 

maturity date at his address as it appears on such note registration books.  The principal and 

interest of this Note is payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America which on 

the respective dates of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

 

 This Note is designated The Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska Redevelopment Revenue Note (Bottle Rocket Brewing Project), Series 

2015A, aggregating ____________________ and No/100 Dollars ($_______) (the “Note”) in 

principal amount which have been issued pursuant to the Section 12 of Article VIII of the 

Nebraska Constitution and Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154, as amended and 

supplemented (the “Act”) and under and pursuant to a Redevelopment Agreement between 

Issuer the Redeveloper on the above-referenced project, to aid in the financing of a 

redevelopment project pursuant to the Act.  This Note does not represent a debt or pledge of the 

faith or credit of the Issuer or grant to the Registered Holder of this Note any right to have the 

Issuer levy any taxes or appropriate any funds for the payment of the principal hereof or the 

interest hereon nor is this Note a general obligation of the Issuer, or the individual officials, 

officers or agents thereof.  This Note is payable solely and only out of the Tax Increment 

Revenues generated by the above-referenced Project.  All such revenue has been duly pledged 

for that purpose. 

 

 THIS NOTE AND THE INTEREST HEREON DOES NOT NOW AND SHALL 

NEVER CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, WITHIN THE MEANING OF 

ANY STATE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION OR STATUTORY LIMITATION, NOR 

SHALL THIS NOTE AND THE INTEREST HEREON EVER GIVE RISE TO ANY 

PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, A CHARGE AGAINST ITS GENERAL CREDIT OR 

TAXING POWERS. 

 

 No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Note, or 

for any claim based hereon or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in the 

Redevelopment Agreement for the Project against any past, present or future employee, member 

or elected official of the Issuer, or any incorporator, officer, director, member or trustee of any 

successor corporation, as such, either directly or through the Issuer or any successor corporation, 

under any rule of law or equity, statute or constitution or by the enforcement of any assessment 

or penalty or otherwise, and all such liability of any such incorporator, officer, director or 

member as such is hereby expressly waived and released as a condition of and in consideration 

of the issuance of this Note. 

 

 It is hereby certified and recited and the Issuer has found:  that the Project is an eligible 

“redevelopment project” as defined in the Act; that the issuance of this Note and the construction 

of the Project will promote the public welfare and carry out the purposes of the Act by, among 

other things, contributing to the development of a blighted and substandard area of the City of 

Seward, Nebraska, pursuant to a Redevelopment Plan adopted by the City; that all acts, 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 89 / 131



  3 

conditions and things required to be done precedent to and in the issuance of this Note have been 

properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 

manner as required by law; and, that this Note does not constitute a debt of the Issuer within the 

meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitations. 

 

 This Note is transferable only upon the books of the Issuer kept for that purpose at the 

office of the Registrar by the Registered Holder hereof in person, or by the Registered Holder’s 

duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of this Note together with a written instrument of 

transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the Registered Holder, together with a 

Purchase Letter from the transferee that is satisfactory to Issuer in Issuer’s sole discretion, and 

thereupon a new registered Note or Notes in the same aggregate principal amounts shall be 

issued to the transferee in exchange therefor, and upon payment of the charges therein 

prescribed. The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this 

Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on 

account of, the principal hereof and premium, if any, and interest due hereon and for all other 

purposes. 

 

 The Note is issuable in the form of a registered Note without coupons.  Subject to such 

conditions and upon the payment of such charges reasonably set by Issuer, the owner of any 

registered Note or Notes may surrender the same (together with a written instrument of transfer 

satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized 

attorney), in exchange for an equal aggregate principal amount of registered Notes of any other 

authorized denominations. 

 

 The Note is redeemable at the option of the Issuer at any time, in whole or in part, upon 

notice mailed to the owner of each Note not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for 

redemption at a redemption price equal to par plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 

 

 The Note is prepayable at any time in whole or in part, at a prepayment price of par plus 

accrued interest to the prepayment date, to the extent there are any funds in the Debt Service 

Fund in excess of amounts necessary to pay scheduled debt service or in the event the 

Redeveloper directs the Issuer that it wishes to prepay the Note.  Prepayments shall reduce the 

number, but not the amount, of scheduled debt service payments on the Note, in inverse order of 

maturity. 

 

 It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by law and 

the Redevelopment Agreement to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent 

to and in the issuance of this Note, exist, have happened and have been performed and that the 

issue of this Note, together with all other indebtedness of the Issuer, is within every debt and 

other limit prescribed by the laws of the State of Nebraska. 

 

 This Note shall not be entitled to any benefit or be valid or become obligatory for any 

purpose until this Note shall have been authenticated by the execution by the Registrar of the 

Certificate of Authentication hereon. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 90 / 131



  4 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA has caused this Note to be signed in its name and 

on its behalf by the signature of its Chairman and attested by the signature of its Secretary, as of 

the Original Issuance Date identified above. 

 

THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

ATTEST:       

 

 

 

___________________________   By: _______________________________ 

Bonnie Otte, Secretary E. Thomas Spunaugle, Chairman 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

  This Note is delivered pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement and the CRA’s 

authorizing resolution. 

 

Seward City Treasurer,  

       as Paying Agent and Registrar  

 

 

 

      

By: _______________________________ 

 Authorized Signature 

 

 
  

 

 

 
4831-3908-6883, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 91 / 131



 
CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

RESOLUTION #2015-__ 
(Amendment to Redevelopment Plan – Bottle Rocket Brewing Project) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF THE 

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA, 
INCLUDING A SPECIFIC REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT. 

 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward 
(“CRA”) has recommended that the Redevelopment Plan for 
Redevelopment Area #1, a copy of which is on file and available for public 

inspection with the City Clerk, (the “Redevelopment Plan”) should be 
amended to include a project for the redevelopment of certain real 

property within the Redevelopment Area identified and legally defined in 
said amendment (the “Project Site”). 
 

B. The proposed amendment to the Redevelopment Plan 
(“Redevelopment Plan Amendment”) is on file and available for public 
inspection with the Seward City Clerk. 

 
C. The Redevelopment Plan Amendment includes a redevelopment 

project, (the “Project”) that will utilize tax increment financing pursuant 
to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 18-2147. 
 

D. The CRA submitted the question of whether the Redevelopment 
Plan Amendment should be recommended to the City Council to the 
Planning Commission of the City of Seward.  

 
E. The Planning Commission recommended the approval of the 

Redevelopment Plan Amendment.  
 
F. Notice of public hearing regarding the adoption and approval of the 

Redevelopment Plan Amendment by the City Council was provided in 
conformity with the Open Meetings Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-1407 et seq., 

the Community Development Law, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 18-2115, and 
Nebraska law. 
 

G. On May 19, 2015, the City Council held a public hearing relating 
to the question of whether the Redevelopment Plan should be adopted 
and approved by the City.  All interested parties were afforded at such 

public hearing a reasonable opportunity to express their views respecting 
the submitted question. 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 92 / 131



 - 2 - 

 
H. The City Council has reviewed the Redevelopment Plan 

Amendment, the cost benefit analysis prepared by the CRA, and the 
recommendations of the Planning Commission, and has duly considered 

all statements made and material submitted related to the submitted 
question. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, it is found by the City Council of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, in accordance with the Community Development Law, 
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154 (the “Act”), as follows: 

 
 1. The Project Site is in need of redevelopment to remove blight 

and substandard conditions identified pursuant to Section 
18-2109 of the Act. 

 

 2. The Redevelopment Plan Amendment will, in accordance 
with the present and future needs of the City of Seward, 

promote the health, safety, morals, order, convenience, 
prosperity, and the general welfare of the community in 
conformance with the legislative declarations and 

determinations set forth in the Act. 
 
 3. The Redevelopment Plan Amendment is in conformance with 

the general plan for development of the City of Seward as a 
whole, as set forth in the City of Seward Comprehensive 

Plan, as amended. 
  
 4. The cost and benefits set forth in the Project cost benefit 

analysis are found to be in the long-term best interest of the 
City of Seward. 

 

 5. The Project would not be economically feasible without the 
use of tax increment financing. 

 
 6. The Project would not occur on the Redevelopment Area 

without the use of tax increment financing.   

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to the provisions of the Act and 

in light of the foregoing findings and determinations, the Redevelopment 
Plan Amendment is hereby approved and adopted by the City Council as 
the governing body for the City of Seward. 

 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

  

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 93 / 131



 - 3 - 

 Dated this 19th day of May, 2015. 
 

 
 CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 
 
 

  By:   
            Mayor 
 

ATTEST:  ______________________ 
 City Clerk 

 
 
  
 

 
4851-2469-8147, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 94 / 131



-1- 
 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA  
RESOLUTION NO. 2105-_____ 

(Approval of Redevelopment Agreement- Bottle Rocket Brewing Project) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, 
SEWARD COUNTY, NEBRASKA, APPROVING THE FORM OF THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO SAID AGREEMENT. 
 

RECITALS 

 
A. Pursuant to the Nebraska Community Development Law, Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§ 18-2101 through 18-2154, as amended (the “Act”), the City of Seward, 
Nebraska (“City”), has adopted a redevelopment plan (“Redevelopment Plan”) for 
the area of the City identified as Redevelopment Area #1.  A copy of the 

Redevelopment Plan is on file with the City Clerk for inspection. 
 

 B. The Redevelopment Plan, as amended, includes a specific 
redevelopment project identified as the Bottle Rocket Brewing Project that will 
include the use of tax increment financing (the “Project”).  

 
 C. On April 29, 2105, the CRA approved the Redevelopment 
Agreement for the Project. 

 
 D. The City has reviewed the Redevelopment Agreement and has 

found it to be in conformity with the Act and the General Comprehensive 
Development Plan of the City, and in the best interests of the City. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Seward, Nebraska, that the Redevelopment Agreement between the Community 
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Seward, Nebraska, and Bottle Rocket 

Brewing, LLC, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated here by 
this reference, is hereby approved;  

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the CRA is hereby authorized to execute 
and deliver the Redevelopment Agreement, with such changes, modifications, 

additions, and deletions therein and shall they seem necessary, desirable or 
appropriate, for and on behalf of the CRA;  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the CRA is hereby authorized to take all 

actions contemplated and required in the Redevelopment Agreement including, 

without limitation, the issuance of such TIF Indebtedness not to exceed the 
amount of TIF Indebtedness set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement.  Such 
TIF Indebtedness shall be repaid solely from the Tax Increment created by the 

Project and does not represent the general obligation of the CRA of the City;  

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 95 / 131



-2- 
 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all Resolutions or parts thereof in 

conflict with the provisions of this Resolution or to the extent of such conflicts, 
are herby repealed.  

 
 DATED THIS 19th day of May, 2105. 
 

CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 
  
 

 By:    
  Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:        

       City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 96 / 131



Exhibit “A” 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

(Redevelopment Agreement) 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
4847-4845-5971, v.  1 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 97 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G4

PUBLIC HEARING - 7:00 P.M. - AMEND AND UPDATE 
ZONING MAP TO INCLUDE AIRPORT OVERLAY- John 
Hughes
Consideration of an Ordinance to Amend and Update the Current Zoning Map.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 98 / 131



Notice of Public Hearing 

Seward Planning Commission 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Seward Planning Commission will hold public 

hearings during a scheduled meeting on Monday, May 11, 2015 beginning at 7:30 p.m., 

and City Council on Tuesday May 19, 2015 beginning at 7:00 at Seward Municipal 

Building for the purpose of hearing testimony of support, opposition, criticism, 

suggestions or observations for a complete update to the Official Zoning Map pertaining 

to the Aviation Overlay District and requirements of LB140.  An agenda for said meeting 

is kept continuously current and available by request from the City Clerk.  The public is 

encouraged to attend. 

 

Questions or comments concerning the public meeting and hearings may be directed to 

the City Clerk.  All interested parties may offer oral comments at the public hearing 

and/or may file written comments with the Planning Commission concerning the petition 

and such comments shall be considered by the Planning Commission, provided such 

written comments are received by the City Clerk prior to the public hearing date. 

 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 99 / 131



 ORDINANCE NO.            

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, SEWARD 

COUNTY, NEBRASKA; TO PROVIDE FOR PUBLICATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IN PAMPHLET 

FORM; TO PROVIDE FOR A TIME WHEN THIS ORDINANCE SHALL TAKE EFFECT.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEWARD, SEWARD 

COUNTY, NEBRASKA: 

 

 Section 1.  Approval of Amendment and Update to Zoning Map.  On March 23, 2015, the Seward 

Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the matter of amending the Zoning Map with a complete 

update and reported to the City Council that it recommended approval of the zoning changes. On May 19, 2015, 

the City Council held a public hearing on said proposed changes and map and found and determined that said 

proposed changes to the Zoning Map are advisable and in the best interests of the City.  The City Council further 

found and determined that public hearings were duly held and notices were duly given.  The City Council hereby 

approves said proposed changes and update to the Official Zoning Map.   

 

 Section 2.  Adoption.  The amended version of the Official Zoning Map of the City of Seward is hereby 

adopted and shall be signed by the Mayor, attested to by the City Clerk and shall bear the seal of the City and 

shall show the date of the adoption of that Ordinance and this amendment. 

 

 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 19th DAY OF MAY, 2015. 

 

        CITY OF SEWARD 

 

 

 

        __________________________________ 

        Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

 

  
   

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Bonnie Otte,  

Assistant Administrator 

Clerk-Treasurer  

Budget & Human Resources Director 

 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 100 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G5

CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSAL REGARDING PLANTING 
OF TREES IN CITY RIGHT OF WAY - Tree Board Chairman, 
Matt Stryson

Administrative Report: The Tree Board is proposing the City adopt an ordinance establishing a plan 
for planting trees in the City right-of-way. Following the presentation and discussion, Council to 
provide direction for drafting an ordinance for Council consideration.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 101 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 102 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 103 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 104 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 105 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 106 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 107 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 108 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 109 / 131



(9-24-07) Design Standards for Street Trees
Chapter 2.35 -1

Chapter 2.35

DESIGN STANDARDS FOR STREET TREES

The Department of Parks and Recreation is assigned 
responsibility for administration of these design standards.

Section 1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The selection, planting, maintenance and removal of trees, shrubs and hedges along the
public ways within the City of Lincoln substantially affect such matters as pedestrians and vehicle
safety, the location and maintenance of utility services, tree maintenance costs, the incidence of tree
diseases, and the general appearance of the cityscape; therefore, it is hereby found and determined
that such selection, planting, maintenance and removal are matters of city-wide concern over which
the city must exercise the control set forth in the following standards and specifications.

1. Street trees planted on City right-of-way (i. e. between the curb and sidewalk, behind the
sidewalk, behind the curb with no sidewalk) shall generally be located as follows to avoid
conflicts with traffic control signs, sight triangles, above- and below-ground utilities, and
existing trees:

a. Street trees on corner lots shall be located 25 feet from the property corner
adjacent to the street intersection. 

b. Twenty-five (25) feet from stop signs.
c. Fifteen (15) feet from street light poles.
d. Ten (10) feet from fire hydrants.
e. Five (5) feet from driveways.
f. Five (5) feet from storm sewer inlets
g. Five (5) feet from manholes
h. Four (4) feet from water shut-off boxes
i. Three (3) feet from gas shut-off valves
j. Five (5) feet from underground utility service lines going from utility mains

to homes/buildings.  The location of the service lines shall be considered, for
distance purposes, to be the surface of the ground above the service line. 

k. Five (5) feet from traffic control signs
l. Four (4) feet from sidewalks where parking areas are greater than eight (8)

feet wide.

If the street tree cannot be planted in compliance with the above requirements, an alternate
location for the street tree may be approved by the Parks and Recreation Department.

Spacing between street trees to be determined by the Parks and Recreation Department.

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 110 / 131



(9-24-07) Design Standards for Street Trees
Chapter 2.35 -2

2. Planting locations will be marked by the City.  Installation of street trees shall be coordinated
with the City Arborist prior to any street tree being planted.

3. The subdivider shall contact the Parks and Recreation Department Forestry Division for the
species of street trees for each street.

4. All street trees, when planted, shall not be less than one inch in caliper.

5. There shall be at least one (1) street tree per lot unless the lot is less than 50 feet in width in
which case the trees would be spaced for major streets according to Traffic Sight Distance
Standards and Street Design Speed as follows:

Major Street       Tree Spacing
Design Speed Feet

25 mph 35-40
30 mph 40-45
35 mph 45-50
40 mph 55-60
45 mph 60-70
50 mph 70-75
55 mph 80+

For non-major streets, the trees would be spaced as follows:

a. Small Trees:  Thirty (30) to thirty-five (35) feet from the nearest existing trees,
public or  private and spaced forty (40) feet from each other, unless otherwise
approved by the City Arborist.

b. Medium Trees:  Forty (40) to forty-five (45) feet from the nearest existing trees,
public or private, and spaced forty (40) to forty-five (45) feet from each other, unless
otherwise approved by the City Arborist. 

c. Large Trees:  Forty-Five (45) to fifty-five (55) feet from nearest existing trees, public
or private, and spaced fifty (50) to fifty-five (55) feet from each other, unless other-
wise approved by the City Arborist. 

Corner lots shall require two or more street trees depending on the length of frontage on each
street for such lots.

Lots with 100 to 150 feet of frontage shall require two (2) street trees and for each additional
50 feet of frontage one (1) additional street tree.  

6. The same species of tree should not be used on streets which are generally parallel and
within five (5) blocks apart, unless otherwise approved by the City Arborist. 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 111 / 131



(9-24-07) Design Standards for Street Trees
Chapter 2.35 -3

7. If a species of tree has been approved on a temporary dead end street, the same species of
tree should be used on the extension of the street into the new subdivision.  

8. More than one species of tree may be allowed to be planted on the same street provided the
designated street tree for that same street is according to the Master Street Tree Plan and
other compatible species are those identified as an approved grouping of street trees from
the most current approved trees for streets for Lincoln, NE. 

9. In order to encourage solar access, where subdivision or community unit plans have
easements, covenants, or other controlling regulatory measure to protect solar access to
building envelopes then the design standards may be modified to allow approved smaller or
dwarf variety trees of the same genus on the north side of east-west streets, provided
however that trees of the same species be used if possible. 

10. Plants shall be nursery grown, first class material, straight single stemmed and must meet
the standards set forth in "American Standard for Nursery Stock" (ANSI Z60.1-2004 or most
current edition) and as further specified herein.  Plant Material shall be obtained from
established commercial licensed nursery growers and installed by licensed nursery and/or
landscape contractors. 

(Resolution A-84549, September 24, 2007).

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 112 / 131



Chapter 12.20 

TREES AND SHRUBBERY

Sections:

12.20.010 Statement of Intent. 
12.20.020 Master Street Tree Plan; Director Defined. 
12.20.021 Landscape Plantings Within the Sidewalk Space.
12.20.025 Street Trees on Private Property.
12.20.030 Maintenance of Street Trees. 
12.20.035 Maintenance of Landscape Plantings Within the Sidewalk Space.
12.20.040 Application for Permit. 
12.20.050 Issuance of Permit; Requirements Pertaining to Planting, 

Maintaining, Removal, and Destruction. 
12.20.060 Work Ordered or Done by the City.
12.20.070 Height and Spread Limitations for Landscape Plantings Within the

Sidewalk Space; Special Assessment for Failure to Maintain.

12.20.010 Statement of Intent.  
The selection, planting, maintenance, and removal of trees and ornamental plantings along

public ways within the City of Lincoln substantially affect such matters as pedestrian and vehicle
safety, the location and maintenance of utility services, tree maintenance costs, the incidence of tree
diseases, and the general appearance of the cityscape; therefore, it is hereby found and determined
that such selection, planting, maintenance, and removal are matters of city-wide concern over which
the city must exercise the control set forth in this chapter. (Ord. 18168 §1; April 28, 2003: P.C.
§12.20.005: Ord. 10129 §1; March 22, 1971). 

12.20.020 Master Street Tree Plan; Director Defined.  
The Director shall prepare and maintain a "Master Street Tree Plan" for the city, showing

thereon the genus, species, and variety of trees which may hereafter be planted in or upon any street,
parkway, sidewalk space, or other public way within the city, and all such tree planting shall
conform to such plan.  A current copy of such plan shall be made available for inspection by the
public at the office of the Director. 

The term "Director" whenever used in this chapter shall mean the Director of Parks and
Recreation of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska, or his authorized deputy, agent, or representative. (P.C.
§12.20.007: Ord. 10129 §2; March 22, 1971). 

12.20.021 Landscape Plantings Within the Sidewalk Space.
The space between the lot line and existing or projected curb line on each side of every street

in the city (hereafter known as the sidewalk space) shall be used only for the location of approved
street trees in accordance with Section 12.20.020, turf grass, shrubs, perennial and annual flowering
plants, ornamental grasses, vegetable gardens, and ground covers.  Shredded wood mulch may be

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 113 / 131



placed around street trees and landscape plantings within the sidewalk space.  (Ord. 18168 §2; April
28, 2003).

12.20.025 Street Trees on Private Property.
The Director may, subject to approval of the Mayor, request permission to enter upon and

plant one or more street trees on property adjacent to public right-of-way pursuant to an easement
agreement when there is insufficient land available for the planting and proper growth of the street
tree or trees in the public right-of-way.   Such easement agreement shall be conditioned upon the
owner of the property agreeing to assume ownership and liability for the street tree and the
responsibility for its proper maintenance which shall include watering as often as required by
necessity, cultivating, mulching, and trimming, or its removal if dead, dying, diseased, or hazardous.

The determination of insufficiency of available land shall be based upon existing roadway
width, except in those cases where design work is underway or completed for a roadway project to
be constructed within the next year, in which case the new curb location shall control. The Parks and
Recreation Department shall prepare a report for the City Council detailing where trees have been
planted on private property and the reasons for such plantings at the request of a City Council
member. (Ord. 19819 §8; December 17, 2012: prior Ord. 17741 §1; October 9, 2000).

12.20.030 Maintenance of Street Trees.  
Except as may otherwise be provided by the City Council for council-created street tree

planting districts, the trimming, spraying, removing, and destroying of all trees now existing, the
selecting, planting, trimming, spraying, removing, and destroying of all street trees hereafter planted
in or upon any street, parkway, sidewalk space, or other public way within the city, shall be done
by and at the expense of the city and at its discretion and by no other person; provided, the Director
may, in accordance with the provisions of this chapter, issue a permit to any applicant therefor,
allowing such person to plant, remove, or destroy any such tree. (Ord. 18168 §3; April 28, 2003:
P.C. §12.20.010: Ord. 10129 §3; March 22, 1971: Ord. 3489 §30-601, as amended by Ord. 7145;
May 2, 1960). 

12.20.035 Maintenance of Landscape Plantings Within the Sidewalk Space.
The owner of the property abutting the sidewalk space shall be responsible for the routine

care of such landscape plantings within the sidewalk space, including watering, mowing, raking and
disposing of leaves, twigs, and other debris, weed control in accordance with Chapter 8.46, and the
trimming and pruning of shrubs and other ornamental landscape plantings. (Ord. 18168 §4; April
28, 2003).

12.20.040 Application for Permit.  
Any person desiring to plant, remove, or destroy any street tree in or upon any street,

parkway, sidewalk space, or other public way within the city shall first make a written application
to the Director so to do, upon forms furnished by the city. Such application shall set forth the name
and address of the applicant, the name and address of the person, firm, or corporation doing the
work, and such other information as the Director may require.  At the time of making such app-
lication, the applicant shall agree in writing to save the city harmless and to protect the city and the
public at all times in connection with such work under such permit, and to do such work in
conformance with specifications set forth by the city. Also at the time of making such application,
the applicant shall furnish the Director with the written consent to the issuance of such permit from

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 114 / 131



the owner of the property abutting the public property upon which such work is proposed to be done.
(Ord. 18168 §5; April 28, 2003: P.C. §12.20.020: Ord. 10129 §4; March 22, 1971: Ord. 3489 §30-
602, as amended by Ord. 7154; May 2, 1960). 

12.20.050 Issuance of Permit; Requirements Pertaining to Planting, Maintaining,
Removal, and Destruction.  

After inspection of the location in question, if in his opinion it is desirable that such tree be
planted, removed, or destroyed, the Director shall issue a permit therefor.  Such permit shall set forth
the name and address of the owner of the property abutting the public property upon which such
work is to be done; the name and address of the person who will perform such work; and the
location at which such work will be performed.  The permittee shall furnish any such street tree to
be planted.  After planting, such street tree shall be and remain the property of the city, and subject
to the provisions of this chapter.  The cost of any such street tree and the cost of all such permitted
planting, removing, and destroying shall be and remain the permittee’s; provided, the Director may,
in accordance with the Tree Voucher Program, issue a voucher towards the purchase of any such
street tree.  Such permit shall be subject to the following conditions, which shall be made a part of
said permit, and failure to comply therewith shall constitute a violation of this chapter: 

(a) Any street tree to be planted shall be planted at the location designated by the
Director.  All trees when planted shall be not less than one inch in diameter at one foot above the
ground surface.  No whips shall be planted; 

(b) When a street tree is being removed or destroyed, the stump shall also be removed.
All removed trees, including limbs and debris therefrom, shall be removed from the street, parkway,
sidewalk space, or other public way within forty-eight hours after being cut, and the ground shall
be raked clean of all chips, branches, and debris; 

(c) When a street tree is being felled, it shall be felled away from the roadway or parallel
with the roadway, when possible, and the sidewalk and street shall be guarded as to protect
pedestrians and vehicles thereon; 

(d) All damage to curbs, sidewalks, and other public property occurring in the
performance of any such work shall be promptly and properly repaired at the permittee's expense.
(Ord. 19050 §1; March 10, 2008: prior Ord. 18168 §6; April 28, 2003: Ord. 16951 §90; March 11,
1996: P.C. §12.20.030: Ord. 10129 §5; March 22, 1971: Ord. 3489 §30-603, as amended by Ord.
5893; October 25, 1954). 

12.20.060 Work Ordered or Done by the City.  
No permit shall be required for any street tree, shrub, or ornamental landscape planting,

removing, or destroying ordered or done by the city; however, all such work shall be done in
conformance with the requirements of subparagraphs (a), (b), (c), and (d) of Section 12.20.050 of
this chapter.  Further, the city may trim all trees in or upon any street, parkway, sidewalk space, or
other public way so that there is a clearance of ten feet over sidewalks and fourteen feet over the
portion of public streets and alleys used for vehicular traffic. (Ord. 18168 §7; April 28, 2003: Ord.
16111 §1; May 11, 1992: P.C. §12.20.035: Ord. 11310 §1; March 24, 1975: Ord. 10129 §6; March
22, 1971). 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 115 / 131



12.20.070 Height and Spread Limitations for Landscape Plantings Within the Sidewalk
Space; Special Assessment for Failure to Maintain.  

Shrubs, perennial and annual flowering plants, ornamental grasses, and ground covers
planted within the sidewalk space, or abutting a sidewalk, shall be maintained so that they do not
extend over curbs, sidewalks, driveways, or alleys. Such landscape plants located between the curb
and sidewalk, or within twelve feet of the curb if no sidewalk exists, shall be maintained to have a
maximum height of no more than thirty inches above the height of the adjoining curb.  Landscape
plants located behind the sidewalk, or beyond twelve feet from the curb if no sidewalk exists, shall
be maintained to have a maximum height in conformance with the Lincoln Municipal Code.  Upon
the failure, neglect, or refusal of an owner of the property abutting the sidewalk space upon which
landscape plants have been planted to maintain such plants in accordance with the requirements of
this section, after at least five days' notice, by publication at least once in a daily newspaper of
general circulation in the City of Lincoln and by postage prepaid certified mail has been given such
person of such failure, neglect, or refusal, the city may treat such plants or growth thereof as weeds
or worthless vegetation and forthwith trim, remove, or destroy the same.  The Director shall annually
prepare and file with the City Clerk a report of all such work, together with the cost thereof, done
by his/her Department during the preceding twelve months.  Upon receipt of such report, the City
Clerk shall present it to the City Council for consideration.  The City Council shall fix a time, date,
and place for hearing said report, and any protests or objections thereto.  The City Clerk shall cause
notice of said hearing to be published once in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, and
served by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the owner of such abutting property as his/her
name and address appears on the last equalized assessment roll of Lancaster County, Nebraska, if
such so appears, or as known to the City Clerk.  Such notice shall be given at least ten days prior to
the date set for hearing and shall specify the day, hour, and place the Council will hear and pass
upon the Director's report, together with any objection or protests which may be made thereto, and
assess such abutting property with such cost.  Such assessment shall be certified by the City Clerk
to the appropriate taxing official for the city, and shall be collected in the manner provided by law
for the collection of general real estate taxes.  Such assessment shall be a lien upon such property
from the date of assessment, shall become delinquent December 1 after the date of assessment, and
shall draw interest from said date until paid at the same rate as provided by law for delinquent
general real estate taxes.  (Ord. 18168 §8; April 28, 2003: P.C. §12.20.040: Ord. 13156 §1; June 22,
1981: Ord. 10129 §7; March 22, 1971: Ord. 9079 §2; August 22, 1966: Ord. 7730 §1; May 7, 1962:
Ord. 3489 §30-605, as amended by Ord. 5893; October 25, 1954). 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 116 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 117 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 118 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 119 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G6

CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION LIMITING PARKING 
60 FEET FROM INTERSECTION ON STREETS 
INTERSECTING WITH HILLCREST DR TO INCLUDE 
KOLTERMAN ST, FAIRLANE AVE, PLAINVIEW AVE, 
SUNRISE DR, AND EASTRIDGE DR - John Hughes

Administrative Report: Following a request made by Jonathan Lobmeyer and discussion at the May 
5, 2015 City Council meeting, City Council directed staff draft a resolution limiting parking 100' 
back on one side of the streets intersecting with Hillcrest Dr. from Columbia Ave. to Eastridge Drive. 
Staff is recommending limiting parking on one side 60 feet from intersection, which allows the 
stacking of 4 vehicles at the intersection. Staff feels 100 feet is excessive and interferes with 
driveways. Following discussion, a motion to adopt the Resolution would be in order. 

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 120 / 131



 RESOLUTION NO.  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 5-422 of the City Code of the City of Seward, 

Nebraska provides that the City may, by Resolution, prohibit or fix 

the time for parking or stopping of vehicles on any street or streets 

as may designated in such resolution, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary to prohibit or fix the time for 

parking and stopping of vehicles on portions of streets as hereinafter 

designated in the City of Seward, Nebraska.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA THAT: 

 

 1.  No vehicles shall be parked or permitted to stand or stop, 

whether attended or unattended at any time during the day or night on 

the following describe areas or portions of streets, to-wit: 

 

 a. The west side of Kolterman Street beginning 23 feet North 

of the west turn lane on Hillcrest Drive, thence north 60 

feet; 

 

b. The west side of Fairlane Avenue beginning 23 feet North of 

the west turn lane on Hillcrest Drive, thence north 60 

feet; 

 

c. The west side of Plainview Avenue beginning 23 feet North 

of the west turn lane on Hillcrest Drive, thence north 60 

feet; 

 

d. The west side of Sunrise Drive beginning 23 feet North of 

the west turn lane on Hillcrest Drive, thence north 60 

feet; 

 

e. The west side of Eastridge Drive beginning 23 feet North of 

the west turn lane on Hillcrest Drive, thence north 60 

feet; 

 

 2. All previous resolutions in conflict with this resolution 

as they relate of the above described area or portion of street are 

hereby revoked. 

  

 3. Appropriate signs or markings shall be placed limiting and 

prohibiting parking at appropriate locations in accordance with this 

resolution. 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 121 / 131



 

 The Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

 Dated: May 19, 2015 

 

                                     THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

 

ATTEST:                                ____________________________ 

                                 Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

_________________________ 

Bonnie Otte 

Assistant Administrator/ 

Clerk-Treasurer/ 

Budget & HR Director 

 

(SEAL) 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 122 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G7

CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
CLOSING HIGHWAY 15 AND THE NORTH LANE OF HWY 34 
FOR THE FOURTH OF JULY FESTIVITIES- John Hughes
Consideration of Approval of a Parade Permit for July 4, Closing Highway 15 at the Intersection of 
Seward Street and Highway 15 and Closure of the North Lane of Highway 34 Between 4th and 6th 
Streets

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 123 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 124 / 131



Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 125 / 131



 

 

 
  

 

 RESOLUTION NO.  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Seward’s Annual FOURTH OF JULY CELEBRATION is scheduled 

for July 4, 2015; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Seward wishes to support this annual event; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary to close the north lane of Highway 34 between 4th & 

6th Streets from 5:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. for the festivities to be held on the 

Courthouse square; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary to close Highway 15 at the intersection of Seward 

Street and Highway 15 for the Parade from 3:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the road closure described above must be approved by the State of 

Nebraska Department of Roads;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SEWARD, NEBRASKA THAT: 

 

 The Assistant Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer/Budget & Human Resource Director 

is hereby authorized to forward this resolution to the State of Nebraska Department 

of Roads for the closing of Highway 34 between 4th & 6th Streets from 5:00 a.m. to 

7:00 p.m.; and the intersection of Highway 15 and Seward Street from 3:30 p.m. to 

7:00 p.m. for the festivities to be held on the Fourth of July in Seward, Nebraska. 

 

  

 The Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

 Dated: May 19, 2015 

 

  THE CITY OF SEWARD, NEBRASKA 

 

ATTEST: ____________________________   

Joshua Eickmeier, Mayor 

 

       _______________________________ 

         Bonnie Otte 

         Assistant Administrator/ 

         Clerk-Treasurer/ 

         Budget & HR Director 

 

(SEAL) 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 126 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G8

CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE -  John Hughes

Administrative Report: The City Council will receive an update on capital and other on-going 
projects.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 127 / 131



City Project Report 05/19/2015 

 

1. Administration –    
 a)   Working with vender on Code codification process   

 b)    Budget Process 

 c)    Wage/Benefit Comparability 

 d)    New TIF Application 

 

2. CIP Projects – 

a) Walking Trail finalizing trail alignment 

b) Great Plains Build out in progress 

 

3. Building & Planning Department –  

a) Plan Review County Justice Center 

b) CIP Info for 205/2016  

c) Surplus Property list for Auction 

           

4. Street Department –  

a) Assist on Cedar & Jackson Street projects 

b) Street repair on East Seward St. 

 

5. Electric Department –   

a) Working on 3 phase projects scheduled for replacement 

b) New transformer bank at new Big Cob location 

c) Work on Pool lighting 

 

6. Water & Waste Water Department –  

a) Pool repairs  

b) Repairs on UV lights 

 

7. Park & Rec Department –  

a) High School Baseball District Tournaments at Plum Creek Park 

 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 128 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G9

FUTURE REQUESTS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS OR 
ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION - Mayor Eickmeier

Administrative Report: This item is to allow Council members an opportunity to request future 
agenda items. To remain in compliance with the open meetings law, no discussion of an item will be 
allowed beyond what is necessary to clarify the request.

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 129 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G10

ANNOUNCEMENT OF UPCOMING EVENTS - Mayor 
Eickmeier
July 4th Celebration

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 130 / 131



City of Seward, NE
Tuesday, May 19, 2015

Regular Session

Item G11

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Staff Contact: 

Seward Regular Session - 5/19/2015 Page 131 / 131


